
Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green 
 
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB 
 
www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499 
 

 
Spelthorne 

Borough Council  

 

Council Meeting 

Thursday, 22 April 2021 

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


 
 

14 April 2021 
 
 Please reply to:  

Contact: Michelle Beaumont 
Direct line: 01784 446337 
E-mail: m.beaumont@spelthorne.gov.uk 
  
  

 
 
To the Councillors of Spelthorne Borough Council 
 
I hereby summon you to attend a meeting of the Council to be held remotely via Microsoft 
Teams video conferencing on Thursday, 22 April 2021 commencing at 6.00 pm for the 
transaction of the following business.  
 

 
Daniel Mouawad 
Chief Executive 
 
Councillors are encouraged to wear their badge of past office at the Council meeting. 
 
Councillors are reminded to notify Committee Services of any Gifts and Hospitality offered 
to you since the last Council meeting so that these may be entered in the Gifts and 
Hospitality Declaration book.  
 
 
 
 



 AGENDA  

 Page nos. 

1.   Minutes silence in remembrance of His Royal Highness, Prince 
Phillip, The Duke of Edinburgh 

 

2.   Apologies for absence  

 To receive any apologies for non-attendance. 
 

 

3.   Minutes  

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Council meeting held 
on 25 February 2021 and the Extraordinary meetings held on 4 and 25 
March 2021.  
 

7 - 42 

4.   Disclosures of Interest  

 To receive any disclosures of interest from Councillors in accordance 
with the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members. 
 

 

5.   Announcements from the Mayor  

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor. 
 

 

6.   Announcements from the Leader  

 To receive any announcements from the Leader. 
 

 

7.   Announcements from the Chief Executive  

 To receive any announcements from the Chief Executive. 
 

 

8.   Questions from members of the public  

 The Leader, or his nominee, to answer any questions raised by 
members of the public in accordance with Standing Order 14. 
 
Note: the deadline for questions to be considered at this meeting is 12 
noon on Thursday 15 April 2021. 
 
At the time of publication of this agenda two questions were received.  
 
Question from Mr A. McLuskey 
In the light of the ‘scorched earth’ policy being pursued by gravel 
company Cemex at Stanwell Quarry in clear opposition to information in 
the public domain and also totally against the tenor of the recent ‘Green’ 
messages in the Spelthorne Bulletin - will the Council use its good 
offices to represent to both Cemex and Surrey County Council that the 
spoilation of this beautiful location cease forthwith? 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Question from Mr A. Woodward 
Given that the Council has committed to sustainable development 
defined as, "Development that meets the needs of the present without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs." 
and to “using sound science responsibly”, will the Council ensure that 
the Local Plan and the Staines upon Thames Development Framework 
take account of the latest science indicating that global warming is on 
track to exceed safe limits, including measures such as; restricting any 
new large scale construction, refurbishing existing structures and 
protecting the remaining greenbelt? 
 

9.   Petitions  

 To receive any petitions from members of the public. 
 

 

10.   Calendar of Meetings 2021-2022  

 To consider the draft calendar of meetings for 2021 to 2022. 
 

43 - 52 

11.   Report from the Leader of the Council  

 To receive the report from the Leader of the Council on the work of the 
Cabinet at its ordinary meeting on 24 March, its extraordinary meeting 
on 29 March 2021 (attached) and its extraordinary meeting on14 April 
(to follow).  
 

53 - 54 

12.   Report from the Chairman of the Audit Committee  

 To receive the report from the Chairman of the Audit Committee on the 
work of his Committee. 
 

55 - 56 

13.   Report from the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

 To receive the report from the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the work of her Committee. 
 

57 - 60 

14.   Report from the Chairman of the Planning Committee  

 To receive the report from the Chairman of the Planning Committee on 
the work of his Committee. 
 

61 - 62 

15.   Motions  

 To receive any motions from Councillors in accordance with Standing 
Order 19. 
 
Note: The deadline for motions to be considered at this meeting was 
Monday 12 April 2021 and two were received. 
 
Motion 1 
 
To Support the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill  (the 
background information provided with this Motion is attached) 
 

63 - 64 



That Council resolves to: 
 

i. Support the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill 

ii. Inform the local media of this decision; 

iii. Write to Mr Kwasi Kwarteng asking him to support the CEE Bill; and 

iv. Write to the CEE Bill Alliance, the organisers of the campaign for the 

Bill, expressing its support (campaign@ceebill.uk). 

Proposer: Councillor J. Doerfel 
Seconder: Councillor T. Lagden 
 
Motion 2 – Project Delivery Fund 
 
The Council notes: 
 

 that the Forecast Outturn for 2021/22 shows that £497k can be 

released from the Project Delivery Fund for other projects as stated 

at section 2.4 of the Revenue Monitoring Report 2020/2021. 

 that these are "savings" in the 2020/21 Forecast Outturn and hence 

would not have any impact on the 2021/22 Budget as presented to 

Council on 25th February. 

The Council herewith decides to allocate these funds (to the value of 
£497k) to the £250k identified in the Budget for 2021/22 as seed funding 
for Green Initiatives (including projects to tackle the climate emergency) 
bringing the total to £747,000 for both capital and revenue grants 
available to local organisations. 
 
Proposer: Councillor J. Doerfel 
Seconder: Councillor T. Lagden 
 

16.   Questions on Ward Issues  

 The Leader, or his nominee, to answer questions from Councillors on 
issues in their Wards, in accordance with Standing Order 15. 
 
Note: the deadline for questions to be considered at this meeting is 12 
noon on Thursday 15 April 2021. 
 
At the time of publication no questions had been received.  
 

 

17.   General questions  

 The Leader, or his nominee, to answer questions from Councillors on 
matters affecting the Borough, in accordance with Standing Order 15. 
 
Note: the deadline for questions to be considered at this meeting is 12 
noon on Thursday 15 April 2021. 
 
At the time of the publication of this agenda one question had been 
received.  

 

mailto:campaign@ceebill.uk


 
Question from Councillor J. Doerfel 
On 20 October 2020, this Council passed a motion on idling. What has 
this Council done in the last 6 months to "declare a no idling zone as a 
matter of urgency", to "encourage all residents and businesses to stop 
engine idling", to raise awareness in Council publications, 
communications, and Council campaigns about the harm of idling, to 
"encourage and assist schools, businesses, and other partners in the 
Borough to highlight the health hazards and environmental impact of 
idling and to take measures to combat idling through signage and other 
measures", to write to Surrey County Council urging the Council to 
proactively address the declaration of a Clean Air Zone and combat 
idling as a matter of urgency including through the implementation of a 
Traffic Regulation Order to this effect, increased use of custom signage, 
idling penalties and increased enforcement resourcing for monitoring of 
idling hotspots including in busy shopping areas, car parks, near 
schools and in residential areas and to write to the Government for 
legislative reform? 
 

18.   Appointment of a representative Trustee  

 To consider the appointment of Council representative Trustees to the 
Ashford Relief in Need (ARIN) Charity.  
 
Councillors Tony Harman and Robin Sider BEM for a four year period 
ending in April 2025.  
 
 

 

 



 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE SPELTHORNE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the Council Meeting of Spelthorne Borough Council held in 
the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-

Thames on Thursday, 25 February 2021 at 6.00 pm 
 

Present: 
 
Councillors: 

M.M. Attewell 

C.L. Barratt 

R.O. Barratt 

C. Bateson 

I.J. Beardsmore 

J.R. Boughtflower 

A. Brar 

S. Buttar 

R. Chandler 

J.H.J. Doerfel 

J.T.F. Doran 

S.M. Doran 

 

R.D. Dunn 

S.A. Dunn 

T. Fidler 

N.J. Gething 

K.M. Grant 

A.C. Harman 

H. Harvey 

I.T.E. Harvey 

N. Islam 

T. Lagden 

V.J. Leighton 

M.J. Madams 

 

J. McIlroy 

A.J. Mitchell 

L. E. Nichols 

R.J. Noble 

O. Rybinski 

D. Saliagopoulos 

J.R. Sexton 

R.W. Sider BEM 

R.A. Smith-Ainsley 

B.B. Spoor 

J. Vinson 

 

Councillor C.F. Barnard, The Mayor, in the Chair 
 

Apologies: 
Apologies were received from Councillors M. Gibson and 
V. Siva and  

 

38/21   Minutes  
The minutes of the Extraordinary Council meeting held on 21 January 2021 
were agreed as a correct record. 
 
The minutes of the Council meeting held on 10 December 2020 were agreed 
subject to the following amendment to minute number 287/20 that, as 
Councillor Olivia Rybinski had been a Director of Knowle Green Estates, Ann 
Fillis was not the first female board member. This sentence will be amended.   
 

39/21   Disclosures of Interest  
Councillor T. Fidler disclosed a conflict of interest on item 9e Pay Award as a 
family member works for the Council, and would be impacted by the 
decisions, he would not take part in the decision on this matter. 
 

40/21   Announcements from the Leader  
The Leader made the following announcements: 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

2 
 

 This Borough, along with the rest of England is still enduring a period of 
lockdown and I know this continues to be a very difficult time for many of 
our residents and businesses in the Borough. COVID-19 positive numbers 
are decreasing in Spelthorne, however if you do need help our 
Support4Spelthorne helpline remains open and is on hand for residents 
who need support. The Prime Minister has set out the road map towards 
the end of lockdown and, for it to be successful, we must continue to follow 
the rules. 

 

 The Council continues to support business in Spelthorne and to date have 
issued £16 million in business and discretionary grants and £18m of 
business rates 12-month reliefs. We will continue to signpost businesses 
to the various support grants available. 

 

 Earlier this month, Spelthorne Borough Council became the first Borough 
in Surrey to launch asymptomatic community testing with a centre at the 
Thameside Centre in Staines and three pharmacies in Spelthorne. Anyone 
in the Borough who must leave home to work and does not have access to 
a symptom-free test through other routes can access to these tests. We 
are particularly encouraging critical workers leaving home for work to be 
tested. 

 

 Following a  four week consultation the Council are reviewing the 
submissions from residents on the proposed changes to the way decisions 
are made at the Council. Following the 30 July 2020 Council meeting, a 
motion was approved which proposed adopting a Committee System of 
governance; meaning that decisions which are currently taken by the 
Cabinet would instead be taken by several committees. I consider that the 
Committee System could provide a more open, democratic, inclusive and 
transparent way of conducting Council business.   

 

 We have also been undertaking a consultation on putting in place a Public 
Space Protection Order to prohibit the possession and use of New 
Psychoactive Substances (NPS) in the Borough. Details of the 
consultation, which closes on Sunday 28 February, can be found on our 
website. 

 

 Spelthorne Borough Council announced the purchase of the freehold of 
the former Marks & Spencer building in the heart of Staines-upon-
Thames.  Having bought the Elmsleigh Centre in February 2020 this 
opportunity supports the Councils regeneration and housing strategy for 
Staines town centre, to the benefit of its residents and local retail 
businesses. 

 

 The Council is working on the extension of the Fordbridge Day Centre, 
which is due to be completed by the end of April. These works will provide 
a bigger and brighter venue for visitors to enjoy once the Centre is allowed 
to reopen.  

 

Page 8



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

3 
 

 The Cabinet voted to impose a temporary moratorium, and to pause three 
significant Council development proposals in Staines-Upon-Thames until 
the Annual Council Meeting in May 2021. This is to allow the Strategic 
Planning team to undertake a public consultation exercise on Issues and 
Options for the Staines Development Framework. 

 

 Spelthorne Borough Council hosted a series of free virtual events to keep 
children entertained over the half term break. These events were well 
received with over 80 participants and included workshops in painting, 
drumming and creative writing. 

 

 On Tuesday 19 January a briefing session was held by officers for 
nominated representatives of the Riverside Residents (Staines) 
Coalition and local ward Councillors on the Waterfront scheme at Bridge 
Street car park in Staines. I called the meeting to address the concerns 
being raised by residents around the development agreement that the 
Council entered into to deliver a 4-star hotel and residential development. 

 

 Spelthorne Borough Council have partnered with the Purple Angels to 
launch the 'Send a Smile' campaign. The current national lockdown means 
we are all spending more time at home and, with lots of people looking to 
make a positive difference, we are inviting young people in Spelthorne to 
write a letter, draw a picture or make a card to send to residents living with 
dementia. Full details are on our website. 

 

 Finally, this Council has been told it has "focused on building financial 
sustainability" and shown "a strong response" to the COVID-19 pandemic 
with plans for "promoting economic recovery and community resilience". 
The local authority was praised in a recent LGA Corporate Peer Review 
report after Spelthorne Borough Council invited them to conduct a 
'financial' peer review of the Council in late 2020 and the full report can be 
read on our website. 

 

41/21   Announcements from the Chief Executive  
The Chief Executive, Daniel Mouawad, stated that it had been nearly a year 
since the Council had declared the COVID-19 pandemic a Borough 
Emergency and the Councils services had been integral to the success of 
protecting and supporting communities in Spelthorne. 
 
Despite the many trials and challenges faced by frontline staff, Council 
officers have successfully supported over 17,000 of the Boroughs most 
vulnerable residents through the dedicated Support4Spelthorne hub. 
 
Officers have developed essential partnership working with community 
champions, volunteers and the NHS to ensure residents have had the support 
they need whilst facing these most difficult of circumstances 
 

Page 9



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

4 
 

The Chief Executive advised that as we start to see a roadmap to recovery, 
he was confident that Spelthorne Borough Council had the right plans in place 
to ensure communities would continue to benefit from critical local services. 
 
On behalf of the Borough Emergency team the Chief Executive thanked 
everyone for their commitment and contribution to making the Borough a safer 
and more resilient place to live.  
 

42/21   Questions from members of the public  
The Mayor reported that, under Standing Order 14, 16 questions had been 
received from eight members of the public. 
 
1. Question from Mr A. Peters 
The proposal for Phase 2 at the site formerly known as Ceaser Court has 
united Lower Sunbury residents in opposition to it and even led to Mrs Ceaser 
formally requesting her family name be disassociated with the site, which 
must be extremely embarrassing for the Council. The 225 letters of objection 
received to date note that this application contravenes in a very substantive 
manner many of the councils own planning guidelines, guidelines agreed in 
full Council and clearly documented in the Planning Policies and 
Supplemental Planning Documents.  
 
Can the Leader please explain why and how the council feels entitled to 
submit an application which rides roughshod over its own planning rules? 
After all if the council cannot show leadership and comply with its own rules 
can the Leader please explain why should any other developer, be they a 
single householder or large corporation? In addition, as the council will be 
both applicant and judge in this substantial development, to avoid conflict of 
interest, can the Leader confirm that the Council will appoint another authority 
to review this application at the decision stage?   
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
The planning application for what is now to be called Benwell House Phase 2 
does not, as you suggest, contravene in a very substantive manner planning 
policies, guidelines or supplementary planning documents. In light of your 
contentions, I instructed officers to undertake a thorough review of the 
application to assess whether or not, in fact, it did, as you say, substantially 
contravene planning policies and guidelines. I can confirm it does not. It 
complies fully apart from a very small number of instances where any non-
compliance is well within industry tolerances. So, for example, a very minor 
shortfall in one of the three areas which are used to define impact of a 
development on daylight to windows of adjoining existing properties.   
  
When developing sites, we also have a duty to ensure we achieve value for 
money. Every scheme has to cover its own costs as a minimum. We 
endeavour to meet and exceed policies and guidelines for every development. 
For example, on this scheme we are well ahead of the curve as we are 
providing underground bin storage which very few developers do. We are also 
providing 33% s106 affordable housing and topping this up voluntarily to 
deliver 50% in total. 

Page 10



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

5 
 

 
Notwithstanding this, as you may be aware, I have committed to ensuring that 
each Council development is reviewed by the Assets Programme Board 
before they can move forward. This will ensure that there is sufficient 
challenge and scrutiny of our development programme. I have no doubt that 
the views expressed by this body will be taken into consideration as we move 
forward with our development programme in future.  
 
As to your last point, the Local Planning Authority is a quasi-judicial body 
which sits apart from the Council. It has to make decisions based on national 
and local planning policy, and is not influenced in any way by who the 
applicant is. There is no conflict of interest and therefore the matter does not 
need to be passed on to another authority to determine the scheme as you 
suggest. 

2. Question from Revd. A. McLuskey 
Why given that it is now seven years since the disastrous 2014 floods – which 
resulted in the death of poor Zane Gbangbola – and after which promises of 
improvements were made, have we now seen a repetition of the inundation? 
 
Response from Councillor R. Noble 
Thank you for your question regarding the recent high levels on the Thames 
and the potential for flooding.  As you will recall in 2014 the Prime Minister 
promised £100million to reduce flooding  - sadly that did not materialise. 
However, we have continued proactively working on the major River Thames 
Scheme comprising of new channels to help balance the load of the Thames 
when high and thus preventing or reducing, where possible, the risk of 
flooding in Spelthorne, Runnymede and Elmbridge. 
 
The River Thames Scheme is expected to cost around £640 million and 
partners have committed to funding their share of the scheme and are 
finalising the mechanisms to do this.  Although only a small Council, we have 
annually since the financial year 2015/16, contributed £49,000 to the 
scheme’s development as our share to the overall cost.  Additionally, we have 
put in Spelthorne Borough Council’s capital programme a sum of £1.3million 
towards the build when it takes place. 
 
Surrey County Council has agreed to provide £270million for long-term flood 
risk management work in Surrey as a whole. This sum includes a £237million 
contribution to the River Thames Scheme, enabling the next steps of the plan 
to move forward. 
 
Spelthorne Borough Council is working with partners, to secure the approvals 
needed to construct the scheme. This includes gaining approval from HM 
Treasury and preparing a planning application, which will be in the form of a 
Development Consent Order, as the whole scheme is classed as a nationally 
significant infrastructure project.  
 
Along with the planning application, the project team will submit an 
Environmental Statement. This will consider the environmental impacts of the 

Page 11



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

6 
 

scheme and how these can be managed and mitigated. These will inform 
what changes may be needed to the scheme design. The project team are 
also working on recruiting the construction partner for the scheme. The 
earliest work is likely to start is 2023, as there are the necessary approvals to 
achieve including planning consent through the Development Consent Order 
Process.   
 
In the meantime, we have ensured preparedness for flooding through our 
emergency plans both from rivers and other sources. The river this year did 
not cause significant flooding as in 2014 but due to high water levels 
everywhere across the borough we did have groundwater issues. 
 
3. Question from Mr P. Thompson 
Will the Leader of the Council please explain the process for reviewing the 
proposed phase 2 of the Benwell House / Ceaser Court development as 
agreed at the Council meeting on 21st January, and detail what opportunity 
there will be for public involvement, given the very high level of concern and 
opposition amongst residents immediately affected and more widely in Lower 
Sunbury? 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
Last night, Cabinet agreed the Terms of Reference, membership and 
delegations for setting up a formal Assets Programme Board, to sit under the 
main Cabinet, which will start the process of reviewing the Council’s 
development programme. This Board will remain in situ until such time as the 
new Council Committee system (if agreed at the end of March 2021) comes 
into place. At that point, the membership of the Board will be refreshed and 
this will almost certainly sit as a sub-committee of the Corporate Policy and 
Resources Committee.  
 
The business case for each development will be reviewed by this new Board, 
as well as its viability and financial payback, plus risks and issues. The Board 
will explore what scope there is, or is not, to amend any schemes, bearing in 
mind the main driver for any residential schemes being that any Council 
scheme needs to cover its own costs as an absolute minimum.  
  
As always under this administration public involvement is key as well as views 
from ward councillors. 
  
The Local Planning Authority will consult residents on any amended plans in 
the usual way.  
 
4. Question from Mr A. Woodward 
Given that Spelthorne Borough Council declared a climate emergency on 14th 
October 2020, how has this informed the current round of budget planning 
and when might we expect to see plans for how all departments of the Council 
will implement changes to address this emergency? 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

7 
 

Response from Councillor R. Noble 
The Council has put large contingencies aside to deal with the climate 
emergency. All departments are now aware of the impact this will have on 
them including services such as planning through to grass cutting. We are in 
the early stages of planning those into next year, but sufficient funds have 
been put aside to contend with those changes.  
 
5. Question from Ms S. Orchard  
I would like to ask the following question addressed to the Leader of the 
Council at the full Council meeting on 25th February 2021. Will Spelthorne 
Borough Council vote to declare their support for the Climate and Ecological 
Emergency Bill that has been submitted to the UK Parliament? 
 
Details of the Bill can be found here Climate and Ecology Bill (parliament.uk)  
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
Spelthorne Borough Council has declared a climate emergency and is 
working towards reducing our carbon footprint. We are currently defining our 
carbon trajectory so that we can best target areas that reduce our carbon 
emissions to the greatest extent.  We will be undertaking a range of actions in 
the next year, including installing solar panels on the roof the Depot and 
trialling an electric dustcart.  
  
We understand the nature of the Private Member’s Climate and Ecology Bill, 
but consider that our actions on climate change and managing our important 
ecosystems will be fulfilled by the work the Borough Council is currently 
undertaking in order to meet all government targets.  We will also be engaging 
with our residents to assist them in reducing their carbon footprint 
 
6. Question from Greta Mattar 
I would like to ask the following question addressed to the Leader of the 
Council at the full Council meeting on 25th February 2021. 
 
Given the complete collapse of retail, the leisure time economy stagnation, 
restaurants, cafes, etc., closed temporarily or permanently are SBC taking 
into account the resultant ‘mood’ of its community in the planning of Staines 
town that will look and be used differently? 
 
You no doubt have aspirations, what is the proposed budget figure to 
implement these changes? 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower  
We are aiming to go out with an Issues and Options consultation on the 
Staines Development Framework in April 2021. The aim is to hear thoughts 
from residents across the borough on how the town should be developed in 
the future. You are right that we are living in uncertain times, both 
economically and socially, particularly as a result of COVID-19. The 
consultation gives us the opportunity to consider how we can best address 
these challenges in a managed and planned way. Clearly this will involve a 
number of uses including residential, retail, offices, leisure and community, 

Page 13

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/cbill/58-01/0172/200172.pdf


 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

8 
 

plus the social and transport infrastructure required to support further 
development. 
 
The results of the consultation exercise will help inform how we move forward. 
There will then be a further round of consultation on a ‘Preferred Development 
Framework’ which will put more ‘meat on the bones’ in terms of the ‘vision’.  
 
The Council is this evening considering the Capital Programme for 2021 to 
2025.  This includes a number of Council sites which are currently on hold as 
a result of the temporary moratorium which was agreed by Cabinet on 24 
January. Work will not progress on Thameside, Tothill or Oast House until the 
three conditions set down by Cabinet have been met 
 
7. Question from Mr C. Hyde 
Given that 46% of Surrey's carbon emissions are produced by transport, and 
a major proportion by cars, encouraging a shift towards travel by walking and 
cycling is an important means of achieving a reduction in carbon emissions 
and air pollution as well as bringing health and other benefits.  
 
The government and Surrey County Council support walking and cycling 
improvements and funding is available for Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs). Other local authorities in Surrey have made 
significant progress in developing LCWIPs and securing funding, including 
neighbouring Runnymede Borough Council.  
 
Has Spelthorne Borough Council developed a LCWIP and sought funding 
from Surrey County Council, or are plans in place to progress this and to work 
with Runnymede Borough Council to ensure that plans are coordinated? 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
Spelthorne Borough Council recognises the importance of reducing both 
carbon emissions and pollution from vehicles. As a result, the Council is 
currently looking closely at how it can develop a Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) in conjunction with Surrey County Council.   As 
there are opportunities for cycling and walking routes linked to the River 
Thames Scheme, we will look to work with neighbouring authorities to see if 
we can develop “corridors” linking different areas for walking and cycling 
purposes.  
 
8. Question from Ms K. Sanders 
GL Hearn's Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA 2015) calculated 
an Objectively Assesses Need (OAN) of 552-757 dwellings per annum (dpa) 
for Spelthorne (versus the existing plan target of 166 dpa until 2026) - see 
SMHA Nov 2015, p177 (section 10.42). Cllr Nichols made some very relevant 
points in his response to the SHMA Consultation at the time although I 
understand he wasn't a councillor then - he comments on the large increase in 
the housing need numbers versus the current official Local Plan and its likely 
impact (please see the response document on the Council website (p. 64-69) 
for his full response). Would the Council agree that the Strategic Housing 
Market Assessment suggesting a 4-fold increase in the rate of demand vs. the 

Page 14



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

9 
 

previously adopted plan has helped to create the pressure from developers 
that we are now witnessing in favour of development? 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
Such a technical question demands a technical answer, and I trust that 
councillors and members of the public listening will bear with me in the 
answers that I will give to this and the following question. 
 
Whilst there was no fixed methodology in national policy at the time, the 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (the SHMA), the National Planning 
Policy Framework and the Planning Practice Guidance set out a clear 
approach to defining the Objectively Assessed Need for housing. This makes 
it clear that the latest national projections should be seen as a starting point, 
which is then increased to take account of local circumstances, as necessary.  
The National Planning Policy Framework sets out that plans should be 
prepared on the basis of meeting full needs for market and affordable 
housing. As an authority, we have no choice but to follow national planning 
policy to meet these needs, which are all focused on the drive from central 
government to increase housing delivery at a rate nationally of 300,000 per 
year. Developers are simply responding to the ‘call’ from the Prime Minister in 
June 2020 to, in quotes, “Build, Build, Build”.  
 
The quicker we can adopt a Local Plan and allocate sites, the better placed 
we are to reduce speculative development and retain greater control over the 
destiny and future development of the borough. 
 
9. Question from Ms K. Sanders 
Does the Council agree that, when arriving at the OAN, the SHMA leaves 
aside issues relating to land supply, infrastructure, Green Belt and other 
constraints but that the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) says these are 
relevant for the plan-making process at a later stage (as indicated by the 
SHMA 2015, Section 10.9)? Does the Council also agree that, in arriving at a 
specific OAN of 603 dwellings per annum (dpa), the SHMA Update Report 
(Oct 2019) also does not factor in the relevance of Green Belt or the other 
constraints mentioned above and hence leaves those issues for the Local 
Plan process we are in now? 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
That is correct – the calculation of housing need is ‘policy off’ meaning it does 
not take account of external factors. The Planning Practice Guidance states 
that assessing housing need is the first step in the process of deciding how 
many homes need to be planned for. It should be undertaken separately from 
assessing land availability, establishing a housing requirement figure and 
preparing policies to address how needs will be met. It is through these latter 
factors that local constraints should be considered 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

10 
 

10. Question from Ms K. Sanders 
Would the Council concede that Green Belt policy as set out in national 
planning policy is one area which can restrict development and hence the 
Objectively Assessed Need (OAN) as acknowledged by ARUP's Green Belt 
Assessment (Stage) 1 Report, Section 3.1.3 (Ministerial Statements)? 
 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
Paragraph 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that there is a 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Footnote 6 sets out the 
designations whereby there is a strong reason for restricting the overall scale, 
type or distribution of development. Green Belt is included in this list.  
 
Paragraph 136 of the NPPF goes on to state that Green Belt boundaries 
should only be altered where exceptional circumstances are fully evidenced 
and justified, through the preparation of plans. All other reasonable options for 
meeting identified needs for development should be fully examined before 
determining if boundaries should be altered. 
 
It is therefore up to the Council to explore all other options for meeting 
development needs before it considers Green Belt release. This is what we 
have done.  
 
 
11. Question from Ms K. Sanders 
The Council has restated its "deep concerns" about the Objectively Assessed 
Need (OAN) figure of (now) 606 dwellings per annum while saying in its 
Preferred Options Consultation Response document that it ultimately has to 
accept government targets. However, would the Council concede that GL 
Hearn's Strategic Housing Market Assessment Update (October 2019), also 
states (in section 1.8) that it is possible to adopt an alternative approach to 
calculating the Objectively Assessed Need (OAN) if exceptional 
circumstances can justify it? 
 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
Planning Practice Guidance states that if it is felt that circumstances warrant 
an alternative approach, this may be used. However, any authorities choosing 
to go down this route can expect this to be forensically scrutinised at 
examination.  
 
Where an alternative approach results in a lower housing need figure than 
that identified using the standard method, the strategic policy making authority 
will need to demonstrate, using robust evidence, that the figure is based on 
realistic assumptions of demographic growth and that there are exceptional 
local circumstances that justify deviating from the standard method.  
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

11 
 

12. Question from Ms K. Sanders 
Given that the OAN hasn't previously factored in major policy constraints but 
that the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) allows for this at the Local Plan 
stage and national guidance specifically mentions that Green Belt policy can 
restrict the OAN, why can't the Council now factor in these major policy 
constraints i.e. a 65% local adjustment factor to the OAN on the basis of 
Spelthorne's Green Belt (or failing that, at a minimum, its PHYSICAL 
environmental constraints such as its high proportion of reservoirs and 
functional flood plain)? 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
It is for members to decide on the Local Plan strategy to pursue. The Council 
must demonstrate that it has explored all options for meeting its housing 
needs in full before considering if an alternative approach is required. This 
includes working with neighbouring authorities and assessing all possible 
alternative site options.  
 
We are still working through this process in order to establish how needs can 
best be met through the Local Plan. The Plan is unlikely to be found sound if 
we have not fully examined options for meeting our housing needs with robust 
evidence required to support the proposed approach. 
 
13. Question from Ms K. Sanders 
At last February's Council meeting you provided the table below showing that 
the Local Plan Preferred site allocations on Green Belt equated to 53 hectares 
of Spelthorne's total Green Belt area (so 1.6% of 3,324 hectares) and the 
areas subject to major policy constraints (e.g. reservoirs, Flood Zone 3b etc) 
totalled 1,665 hectares so pretty much exactly half of Spelthorne's Green Belt 
leaving 1,659 hectares of Green Belt which are not reservoirs or subject to 
other major policy constraints. 
 
As also mentioned in your answer at the time, you didn't have a measure for 
the proportion of previously developed Green Belt land (PDL) bar the land that 
had planning permission (extant, under construction or recently completed) 
which was approximately 70 hectares. It was suggested that work would be 
done on this.  
 
a) Does the Local Plan Working Group now have an answer for the total area 
of Spelthorne Green Belt which is already considered "Previously Developed 
Land"? 
 
b) Please could you split out the area of Flood Zone 3b? 
 
c) Given that Shepperton Studios, the "Eco Park", a number of schools such 
as Bishop Wand (together with Spelthorne Gym) and other infrastructure are 
already on Green Belt land, would the Council concede that the preferred 
Green Belt site allocations in Local Plan proposals represent a considerably 
greater proportion of the borough's "developable" Green Belt than the 1.6% of 
Green Belt mentioned in the Preferred Options Consultation document?” 
 

Page 17



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

12 
 

Evidence provided for written response, Feb 2020 
 

Area Size (ha) Comments 

Total Spelthorne Green 
Belt 

3324   

Reservoirs, Flood zone 
3b, SSSI, SPA, 
Common Land 

1665 Included within GB 

Land with Planning 
permission (extant; 
under construction; or 
recently completed) 

70 Commercial – 61.88 (all 
PDL except part of 
Shepperton Studios) 
Residential – 7.60 
  

Preferred allocation 
sites 

53   

PDL = Previously Developed land 

Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
a) The Council has not yet been able to consider this. This would involve 
creating a new mapping system and drawing all development in the Green 
Belt from previous decades. This would be a large draw on resources, and 
whilst we plan to explore this in future there is no guarantee as to how quickly 
this could be produced. There are currently other workstreams within the 
Local Plan that need to take priority.  
  
b) Flood zone 3b is the functional floodplain. This totals 618 hectares across 
the whole of Spelthorne, or approximately 573 hectares within the Green Belt.  
  
c) There are evidently areas within the Green Belt that are already developed 
which therefore reduces the overall ‘developable’ land available.  
 
14. Question from Ms K. Sanders 
In a written response in October 2020, Cllr McIlroy said that tenders from 
seven consultants had been considered before awarding the Green Belt 
Assessment to ARUP. Please can the Council provide the names of the other 
consultants considered? 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
The following firms submitted proposals to the call for tender: Arcus; Arup; 
Peter Brett; DLP; Gillespies; OHES; and Wardell Armstrong.  
 
15. Question from Ms K. Sanders 
ARUP's Green Belt Assessment Stage 1 Report (Feb 2018) states that it is an 
independent and objective assessment of Spelthorne's Green Belt. Is the 
Council aware of the "Perspectives" article on ARUP's website "Is Green Belt 
Policy Fit for Purpose?" in which the author states that they ‘believe that green 
belt needs a fundamental re-think because it holds some of the answers to 
the UK's housing crisis’?” 
 

Page 18



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

13 
 

Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
Arup is a multi-national company and has a range of publications across 
several fields that it is involved in. It is not uncommon for articles to be 
published within the planning profession on a range of topical issues.  
 
There is no reason whatsoever to assume the publication of an article by an 
individual within the company would have any impact upon the output of the 
Green Belt Assessment. Arup have produced a robust methodology to 
conduct their assessment and this has been reviewed by the Council. Officers 
have, as you would expect, critically reviewed the work produced by Arup at 
regular intervals to ensure its thoroughness, and are satisfied with its 
objectiveness.  
 
Through the Royal Town Planning Institute, planners are bound to act with 
honesty and integrity and to utilise independent professional judgment in 
decision making.  
 
16. Question from Ms K. Sanders 
In the responses to the Issues and Options Consultation, Montagu Evans 
stated that their client Angle Property (the owner of the Bugle Nurseries and 
Croysdale Green Belt sites) met with ARUP at the Council offices in January 
2018. What was the purpose and outcomes of that meeting and which other 
stakeholders were invited to that particular engagement session? 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
The Council and Arup held time-limited sessions with landowners of sites that 
had been promoted to the call for sites in January 2018. The purpose of these 
meetings was for Arup to explain the findings of the report to landowners. 
These meetings were purely technical and went through the methodology 
employed as well as the reasoning behind the scoring given.  
 

43/21   Petitions  
There were none. 
 

44/21   Allocations of seats and appointment of members to Committees  
Allocation of seats on Committees 
It was moved by Councillor J.R. Boughtflower and seconded by Councillor J. 
McIlroy and  
 
Resolved that pursuant to Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989, the Council agrees the political allocation of seats as set out in 
Appendix A to this item. 
 
Appointment of members to Committees 
It was moved by Councillor J.R. Boughtflower and seconded by Councillor J. 
McIlroy to appoint the members to serve on the Committees as shown in 
Appendix B.  
 

Page 19



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

14 
 

Resolved that the Council agrees the Councillors to serve on Committees as 
shown on Appendix B.  
 
 

45/21   Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021/22  
Council considered the recommendation of the Cabinet on the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement for 2021/22. 
  
The proposed Strategy represented an appropriate balance between risk 
management and cost effectiveness. 
 
Resolved to approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 
2020/21. 
 

46/21   Pay Policy Statement 2021/22  
Council considered a recommendation from Cabinet to approve the pay policy 
statement for 2021/22. Pay Policy statements must be agreed by full Council 
and published by 31 March each year to apply to pay decisions during the 
next financial year. 
 
Resolved to approve the Pay Policy Statement 2021/22. 
 

47/21   Capital Strategy 2021 to 2026  
Council considered the recommendation of the Cabinet on a Capital Strategy 
for the period 2021 to 2026. 
  
The 2021 Strategy was very different to those that preceded it and it puts 
‘front and centre’ how the Council’s new priorities of delivering affordable 
housing, achieving the regeneration of its town centres and ensuring a 
sustainable future in recognition of declaring a climate change emergency are 
to be delivered. 
 
A recorded vote was conducted as requested by Councillor J. Sexton with the 
results as follows: 
 
FOR (20) 
Attewell, Barnard, Barratt C, Barratt R, Boughtflower, Brar, Buttar, Chandler, 
Gething, Harman, Harvey H, Harvey I, Islam, Leighton, Madams, McIlroy, 
Mitchell, Noble, Rybinski and Sider. 
  
AGAINST (7) 
Beardsmore, Fidler, Saliagopoulos, Sexton, Smith-Ainsley, Spoor and Vinson. 
 
ABSTAIN (9) 
Bateson, Doerfel, Doran J, Doran S, Dunn R, Dunn S, Grant, Lagden, and 
Nichols.   
 
Resolved to approve the Capital Strategy for 2021-2026. 
 

Page 20



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

15 
 

48/21   Capital programme 2021/22  
Council considered the recommendation of Cabinet on the Capital 
Programme for the period 2021/22 to 2024/25 in the light of the available 
resources and the corporate priorities. 
 
Resolved to: 
1.    Approve the Capital Programme for 2021/22 to 2024/25 
2.    Approve the Prudential Indicators for 2021/22 to 2024/25. 
 
 

49/21   Pay Award 2021/22  
Councillor T. Fidler did not participate or vote on this item due to a conflict of 
interested in the matter.  
 
Council considered the recommendation of the Cabinet on the Pay Award 
2021/22.  
 
The proposed pay award of 0.75% to all staff, including those on personal 
salaries and apprentices, and an additional 0.25% for scales 1 to 3 had been 
subject to consultation and negotiation with Unison and was made to help 
attract and retain staff. 
 
Council also considered the deletion of scale points 8 and 9 from scale 1, as 
there was only a £4 difference between these points, and a one-off non-
consolidated payment of £100 (gross) to all staff (excluding casual workers) in 
recognition of the hard work, dedication and additional efforts staff had made 
to ensure services were delivered as usual during the pandemic 
 
Councillor J.R. Sexton proposed an amendment to the motion, seconded by 
Councillor R.A. Smith-Ainsley, to cap the pay award up to and including 
managerial grade 2 and to remove the one off payment for all staff.  
 
A recorded vote was conducted on the amendment, as requested by 
Councillor A.J. Mitchell, which FELL with the results as follows: 
 
FOR (4) 
Sexton, Smith-Ainsley, Spoor and Vinson. 
 
AGAINST (30) 
Attewell, Barnard, Barratt C, Barratt R, Bateson, Beardsmore, Boughtflower, 
Brar, Buttar, Chandler, Doerfel, Doran J, Doran S, Dunn R, Dunn S, Gething, 
Grant, Harman, Harvey H, Harvey I, Islam, Lagden, Leighton, Madams, 
McIlroy, Mitchell, Nichols, Noble, Rybinski and Sider. 
 
ABSTAIN (1) 
Saliagopoulos.  
 
A recorded vote was conducted on the original recommendations as 
requested by Councillor J. Sexton with the results as follows: 

Page 21



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

16 
 

FOR (31) 
Attewell, Barnard, Barratt C, Barratt R, Bateson, Beardsmore, Boughtflower, 
Brar, Buttar, Chandler, Doerfel, Doran J, Doran S, Dunn R, Dunn S, Gething, 
Grant, Harman, Harvey H, Harvey I, Islam, Lagden, Leighton, Madams, 
McIlroy, Mitchell, Nichols, Noble, Rybinski, Sider, Spoor.  
 
AGAINST (4) 
Saliagopoulos, Sexton, Smith-Ainsley and Vinson. 
 
ABSTAIN (0) 
 
Resolved to approve the 2021/22 pay award and deletion of scale points as 
follows: 
  
1. 0.75% to all scale points including personal salaries and apprentices; 
2. An additional 0.25% for scales 1 to 3; 
3. A one-off, non-consolidated payment of £100 (gross) to all staff (excluding 

casual workers), and 
4. The deletion of scale points 8 and 9 from Scale 1 
 

50/21   Detailed Revenue Budget 2021/22  
The Council considered the recommendation of Cabinet on the detailed 
Revenue Budget for 2021-22 and the proposed Council Tax for 2021-22. The 
Mayor referred councillors to the Budget Book (green cover) reflecting the 
decisions and recommendations made by Cabinet on 24 February 2021, 
including the precepts being levied by Surrey County Council and the Surrey 
Police. 
  
It was moved, seconded and  
 
Resolved to agree that in accordance with Standing Order 20.4, the 
respective Budget speeches of the Group Leaders may each exceed 10 
minutes in length if necessary. 
  
The Leader of the Council, Councillor J.R Boughtflower made a statement on 
the Budget and the Council Tax and moved the recommendations on the 
detailed Budget for 2021-22 as set out in the report circulated in the Budget 
Book. The Leader of the Liberal Democrats Group, Councillor S. Dunn, 
Leader of the United Spelthorne Group, Councillor I.T. Harvey and Leader of 
the Green Group, Councillor J. Doerfel then made statements. 
  
A copy of Councillors Boughtflower, Dunn, Harvey and Doerfel’s speeches 
are attached to these minutes as Appendices A - D respectively. 
  
During the debate on this item, it was moved, seconded and 
Resolved to suspend Standing Order 5, Duration of Meeting, to allow the 
meeting to continue until the completion of this item of business. 
  
At the conclusion of the debate on the Revenue Budget, the Mayor explained 
it was a legal requirement to record in the minutes of the proceedings the 

Page 22



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

17 
 

names of the persons who cast a vote for the decision or who abstained from 
voting. 
  
Councillor Gething left the meeting before the vote was called. 
  
The voting was as follows: 
 
FOR (19) 
Attewell, Barnard, Barratt C, Barratt R, Boughtflower, Brar, Buttar, Chandler, 
Harman, Harvey H, Harvey I, Islam, Leighton, Madams, McIlroy, Mitchell, 
Noble, Rybinski and Sider. 
 
AGAINST (3) 
Doerfel, Lagden and Sexton.  
 
ABSTAIN (13) 
Bateson, Beardsmore, Doran J, Doran S, Dunn R, Dunn S, Fidler, Grant, 
Nichols, Saliagopoulos, Smith-Ainsley, Spoor and Vinson. 
 
Resolved to: 

1. Approve a 0.00% increase on Band D for the Spelthorne Borough Council 
element of the Council Tax for 2021/22. Moreover: 

 

a) The revenue estimates as set out in Appendix 1 be approved. 

b) No Money, as set out in this report is appropriated from General Reserves 
in support of Spelthorne’s local Council tax for 2021/22. 

c) To agree that the Council Tax base for the year 2021/22 is 39,016 band D 
equivalent dwellings calculated in accordance with regulation 3 of the 
Local Authorities (Calculation of Council tax base) Regulations 1992, as 
amended, made under Section 35(5) of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992. 

 

2. Continue the Council’s Local Council Tax Support Scheme with the current 
rules and regulations. 

3. Continue the complete disregard of war pension / armed forces pension 
income from benefit calculations. 

4. Approve the growth and savings items as set out in the report’s 
appendices. 

5. Note the Chief Finance Officer’s commentary in section 4 of the report on 
the robustness of budget estimates and levels of reserves under sections 
25 and 26 of the Local Government Act 2003 

6. Agree the Council Tax Base for the whole council area for 2021/22 [Item T 
in the formula in Section 31b (3) of the local government Finance Act 
1992, as amended (the “act”)] should be 39,016 band D equivalent 
dwellings and calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council’s 
own purpose for 2021/22 is £205.05 Per Band D equivalent dwelling. 

7. That the following sums be now calculated by the Council for the year 
2020/21 in accordance with Section 31 to 36 of the Local Government Act 
1992. 

Page 23



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

18 
 

 

A 104,340,381 Being the aggregate of 
the amount which the 
council estimates for the 
items set out in Section 
31A (2) of the Act taking 
into account all precepts 
issued to it by Parish 
Councils. 

B   96,340,081 Being the aggregate of 
the amount which the 
Council estimates for the 
items set out in Section 
31A (3) of the Act 

C    8,000,300 Being the amount by 
which the aggregate at 
(A) above exceeds the 
aggregate at (B) above, 
calculated by the 
Council, in accordance 
with Section 31A (4) of 
the Act, as its Council 
Tax requirement for the 
year 

D     205.05 Being the amount at (C) 
above divided by the 
amount at 5c (above), 
calculated by the Council 
in accordance with 
Section31B (1) of the act, 
as the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year 
(including Parish 
precepts) 

E     0 Being the aggregate 
amount of all special 
items (Parish precepts) 
referred to in Section 
34(1) of the Act. 

F   205.05 Being the amount at (D) 
above less the result 
given by dividing the 
amount at (E) above by 
the amount at 5c 
(above), calculated by 
the Council, in 
accordance with Section 

Page 24



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

19 
 

34(2) of the Act, as the 
basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year 
for dwellings on those 
parts of its area to which 
no Parish precept 
relates. 

 

8. That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2021/22 in 
accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 as amended by the Localism Act 2011.   
 

A 

£ 

B 

£ 

C 

£ 

D 

£ 

E 

£ 

F 

£ 

G 

£ 

H 

£ 

136.70 159.48 182.27 205.05 250.62 296.18 341.75 410.10 

 

Being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at (F) above by the 
number which in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is 
applicable to dwellings listed in a particular valuation band divided by the 
sum which in that proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in valuation 
band ‘D’, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section36(1) of the 
Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect of 
categories of dwellings listed in different band. 

 

9. That it be noted that for the year 2021/22 Surrey County Council and 
Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner have stated the following amounts 
(subject to ratification on 2 & 7 February) in precepts issued to Spelthorne 
Borough Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 for each of the categories of dwellings shown below: 
 

Precepts issued to the Council 

 
A 
£ 

B 
£ 

C 
£ 

D 
£ 

E 
£ 

F 
£ 

G 
£ 

H 
£ 

Surrey County 
Council 

1,032.72 1,204.84 1,376,98 1549.08 1,893.32 2,237.56 2,581.80 3,098.16 

Surrey Police 
& Crime 
Commissioner 

190.38 222.11 253.84 285.57 349.03 412.49 475.95 571.14 

 
10. That, having calculated the aggregate in each case above the Council in 

accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 as amended by the Localism Act 2011, hereby sets the amounts as 
the amounts of Council tax for the year 2021/22. 

Page 25



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

20 
 

The Council has determined that its relevant basic amount of Council Tax for 
2021/22 is not excessive in accordance with the principles approved under 
Section 52ZB Local Government Finance Act 1992. 

As the billing authority, the council has not been notified by a major precepting 
authority that its relevant basic amount of Council Tax for 2021/22 is 
excessive and that the billing authority is not required to hold a referendum in 
accordance with Section 52ZK Local Government Finance Act 1992. 

51/21   Report from the Leader of the Council  
The Leader of the Council, Councillor J. Boughtflower, presented the reports 
of the Cabinet meetings held on 25 and 27 January and 24 February 2021 
which outlined the matters the Cabinet had decided since the last Council 
meeting.  
 

52/21   Report from the Chairman of the Members' Code of Conduct 
Committee  

The Chairman of the Members’ Code of Conduct Committee, Mr. Ian Winter, 
presented his report which outlined the matters the Committee had decided 
since the last Council meeting.  
 

53/21   Report from the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

The Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Councillor V.J. 
Leighton, presented her report which outlined the matters the Committee had 
decided since the last Council meeting. 
 

54/21   Report from the Chairman of the Planning Committee  
The Chairman of the Planning Committee, Councillor T. Lagden, presented 
his report which outlined the matters the Committee had decided since the 
last Council meeting. 
 

55/21   Motions  
There were none.  
 

56/21   Questions on Ward Issues  
There were no questions on Ward issues. 
 

57/21   General questions  
The Mayor reported that eight general questions had been received, in 
accordance with Standing Order 15, from Councillors R.W. Sider BEM, C. 
Bateson, L.E. Nichols, T. Fidler, H. Harvey, I.T.E. Harvey, O. Rybinski and A. 
Brar.  
 
1. Question from Councillor Robin Sider BEM 
Once again Travelers have encamped in Shepperton, and once more their 
presence is on the highway which is the responsibility of Surrey County 
Council, who have subsequently informed Spelthorne Head 

Page 26



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

21 
 

of Neighbourhood Services that they are working on a lockdown toleration 
policy and are not at this stage prepared to move them on from their current 
location. In response, the Travelers have indicated that their next move would 
be back to Old Charlton Road, where they were last year and where their 
presence caused anguish and grief to local residents. Such encampment in 
their present location has again caused local residents considerable concern. 
In the year 2019, and again in the year 2020 it is documented in full council 
agendas that I asked that officers seek through the legal channels, an 
injunction through the courts to prevent Travelers entering Spelthorne. That 
said, can the Leader of the council inform me when officers last wrote to the 
relevant authorities regarding this issue,  what response did they receive, and 
from whom came such response? 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
Thank you for your question Councillor Sider. Since you last posed this 
question, Spelthorne officers have continued to gather information to enable 
us to apply to the courts for an injunction to protect all of our parks and open 
spaces within the Borough. Officers have been working with the Police, DVLA 
and the barrister appointed by our legal department to ensure that the legal 
bundle for the injunction was complete for the barrister to submit to the court.   
 
Whilst working on this approach, the Court of Appeal considered the appeal 
against the London Borough of Bromley and widened the scope to look at all 
38 injunctions granted to other District and Borough Councils. The appeal 
judge stated, amongst other points, that the injunctions were too wide and 
amounted to borough wide prohibition of encampments.  During this appeal 
the judge also considered the gypsy way of life which includes their rights to 
stop on a temporary basis whilst travelling and the absence of sufficient transit 
sites to enable the Gypsy Romany Travelling Community (GRTC) to travel. 
 
The appeal judge also decided that a directions hearing should be listed for 
January 2021 to review all issues raised at the appeal hearing.  Information 
from this hearing has not yet been published and we would expect this to be 
available in the latter part of 2021. Until such time as the outcome of the 
directions hearing is known, officers are not able to pursue this injunction 
further.  
 
In accordance with Standing Order 15.2, Councillor Sider asked the following 
supplementary question: 
 
Will the Leader share my concerns together with those of local residents that 
the police did not exercise their powers to move on travellers from Littleton 
Recreation Ground, thereby denying families of this outdoor facility during this 
unauthorised encampment and further closure of the park until a full and 
thorough clear-up and clean-up has been carried out by council staff?  
 
Response to supplementary question from Councillor J. Boughtflower: 
 
Councillor Sider you know I think what has happened is awful and I think that 
Surrey police need to take more action and I am very happy to write to the 

Page 27



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

22 
 

chief constable to ask why there wasn’t a police presence earlier and what 
more they could have done. 
 
2. Question from Councillor Chris Bateson 
The long-standing position of Spelthorne Council was to oppose Network 
Rail’s proposal to permanently close the railway crossing at Moor Lane on 
safety grounds, as clarified in a Council press release prior to the 
commencement of the Enquiry. 
 
Two-thirds of the way through the proceedings, the Council performed a 
complete about-turn and dramatically withdrew its opposition to permanent 
closure and before all objector’s presentations had been heard. This decision 
was reached by a select group of Officers and a Deputy Leader at very short 
notice. 
 
How we ended up in this situation is of concern to both Councillors and 
residents of the Borough. In turn, this decision has damaged the Council’s 
reputation within the local community. In the light of the Council’s apparent 
failure to adequately prepare its case, by contrast to National Rail’s defence, 
what financial cost has been incurred by our Authority?  
 
Response from the Deputy Leader Councillor J. McIlroy: 
Thank you for your question Councillor Bateson. Before outlining the financial 
costs incurred by Spelthorne in relation to this Inquiry, I believe that it is 
essential to give some important background to this case.   
 
Since the temporary order to close this crossing was first implemented, 
Spelthorne Borough Council has objected to this and has made a strong 
commitment to challenge the closure based on the evidence we had before 
us. Prior to the Inquiry, Network Rail did not provide a clearly evidenced case 
for closure; in particular, because of a lack of detailed evidence supporting 
their historical decision-making process, and the underlying reasoning that 
sought to argue that it was not reasonably practicable to implement additional 
and/or alternative safety mitigation options.   
  
The Council did not fail to adequately prepare its case as you have intimated.  
In the run up to the Inquiry, Council officers undertook a great deal of work to 
prepare evidence to support our arguments and develop our case, based on 
the information they had available to them prior to the Inquiry. This included 
liaising with Surrey County Council (SCC), as the authority with responsibility 
for maintaining such public footpaths. 
  
As the Inquiry moved closer, a number of additional documents were 
produced by Network Rail, both alongside its proofs of evidence, as well as 
separately. We also discovered that Network Rail had instructed Counsel to 
present its case. As a result, our officers made the decision to instruct our 
own barrister (Jonathan Darby), specialising in this type of work, in order to 
assist us with preparing and presenting the Council’s case. Our officers did 
enquire whether SCC would like to work with us and come on board with 

Page 28



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

23 
 

employing Counsel support in the run up to the Inquiry, but they did not 
receive a positive response.  
  
It was clear from our Counsel’s advice that we were always going to face an 
uphill challenge to get an Inspector to go against a Network Rail 
recommendation for extinguishment of the crossing; not least because of the 
general trend of Inspectors erring on the side of caution in circumstances 
where fundamental safety issues have been raised as part of the case in 
favour of extinguishment, with expert evidence having been submitted by 
Network Rail in support of that position. However, having reviewed the 
information that became available late in the day, our Counsel’s expert view 
was that there were reasonable grounds to explore and challenge Network 
Rail’s decision-making processes and, in particular, its analysis of alternative 
safety mitigation options.    
  
Just prior to the Inquiry, and at a number of points as this progressed, 
Network Rail presented new information which provided a persuasive case 
that the crossing was dangerous and could not be made safe by any 
reasonably practicable means. The information their witnesses provided for 
the first time at the Inquiry, provided significant additional evidence as to why 
the crossing was inherently unsafe, why it could not reasonably be made safe, 
and how Network Rail had undertaken their assessment to come to that 
conclusion.  Options such as a bridge and tunnel were explored, but it was 
obvious that these would be neither physically, nor financially viable in the 
circumstances.  Any remaining chance of succeeding in our arguments was 
then significantly weakened by the evidence given by SCC.    
  
In giving evidence at the Inquiry, SCC’s officer responsible for rights of way 
agreed that public safety was at the heart of the extinguishment and she 
stated that it was her professional opinion that the crossing should be 
closed. The County Council’s priority statement for such footpaths listed 
public safety as second top priority, and she agreed that if the inspector 
concluded that for the purposes of Network Rail’s section 118a case the 
crossing is unsafe, the wider expediency test would not overturn any of this 
and warrant reopening of the crossing. Under questioning from Network Rail’s 
barrister, SCC’s officer stated that she disagreed that there was a lack of 
suitable and safe alternative routes and having sought the view of SCC 
Highways experts, there was nothing to suggest that either the northern or 
southern alternative connection routes to the Moor were hazardous to 
pedestrian movements. She further indicated that a number of arguments that 
had been put forward in the case against closure of the crossing were 
irrelevant (e.g., the historic usage of the footpath, the fact that it existed before 
the before railway and the existence of a Site of Special Scientific Interest). 
  
This evidence from the officer presenting SCC’s case (in combination with the 
additional information and evidence provided by Network Rail during the 
course of the inquiry), significantly reduced any residual chance of the 
Spelthorne succeeding in maintaining our objections against the 
extinguishment of the footpath. 
  

Page 29



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

24 
 

Taking all of the above factors into consideration as the Inquiry progressed, 
our Counsel strongly advised that we should consider withdrawing our 
objection to the extinguishment of the crossing as the Inspector, in the face of 
all the evidence presented at the Inquiry, would be highly unlikely to agree 
that the footpath could be made safe and should re-open. To continue 
pursuing our case would lead to additional costs to Spelthorne and risk the 
Borough Council potentially having to pay some of Network Rail’s costs.   
 
In presenting our case and challenging Network Rail’s evidence, Spelthorne 
had, however, achieved notable concessions from them in relation to the 
funding of improvement works to the proposed alternative routes. Although 
Network Rail indicated that these had always ‘been on the table’, Spelthorne 
managed to get a clear undertaking from them that they would designate 
funding for these improvements, an undertaking which was then provided in 
writing to Surrey County Council during the Inquiry.  In doing so, we could be 
satisfied that the ‘northern’ alternative route along Moor Lane could be made 
sufficiently safe for use by pedestrians as an alternative means of accessing 
Staines Moor.  
  
Our Counsel also believed that since Network Rail had been so slow in 
providing important elements of their evidence, which proved that the crossing 
could not be made safe (much of which was provided just before or during the 
inquiry), Spelthorne would have reasonable grounds for applying for an award 
of partial costs in its favour.   
  
Following a meeting to discuss these issues between myself, Spelthorne’s 
officers and our Counsel, reluctantly the difficult decision was taken (in 
accordance with the scheme of delegations) to withdraw the Borough 
Council’s objection to the extinguishment of the Moor Lane crossing. Based 
on our Counsel’s expert advice this was the only reasonable way forward for 
the Council in these circumstances. As I have outlined, failure to withdraw our 
objections on the face of the evidence given to the Inquiry, which appeared to 
present an overwhelming safety case for closure of the crossing, would have 
resulted in further costs to Spelthorne, including the significant possibility of 
the Council having to pay some of Network Rail’s costs.  
  
Other than our own officer time, the costs which were incurred for the Council 
in relation to this case were the Counsel’s fees, amounting to around £15,000.  
 
3. Question from Councillor Lawrence Nichols 
The number of housing units proposed for the Oast House site at the 
Extraordinary Council meeting on 21st January was significantly different from 
the number indicated in the Cabinet paper approved in March 2019.  What 
was the process followed to authorise this change and why has the Council 
chosen to spend over £1.2m on planning the development of this site without 
a revised Cabinet approval of the change or any public consultation? 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
Thank you for your question Councillor Nichols. 
 

Page 30



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

25 
 

As active members of the Property Investment Task Group looking at property 
matters, we together identified concerns around how development schemes 
have progressed from inception to completion.  
 
Unit numbers for such projects are always approximate in Cabinet papers, 
and subject to planning and other risks. Early feasibility work is undertaken 
prior to acquisition to inform development parameters. There then follows an 
agile development management process which involves design work, 
technical analysis and wider stakeholder involvement. This looks to optimise 
the development in terms of design quality, unit numbers and financial 
performance within the planning policy context. The unit numbers may go up 
or down as a result.  
 
The fees to date for this project are £822,000, not £1.2m as you state. Given 
the scale and complexity of the scheme and the number of changes which 
have been made, this is not unreasonable. No additional fees will be paid until 
we have a financially viable scheme that is acceptable in principle to the 
planners. 
 
Having said all that, a gap in reporting changes to Cabinet has been identified 
by the members of the Property Investment Task group which you are a 
member of. 
 
Currently, a report only goes to Cabinet if there is a budgetary implication 
(e,g. more budget is required to deliver the scheme than originally 
anticipated).  
 
This is one of the areas that has caused concern from councillors, and this will 
be looked at in detail under the newly constituted Assets Programme Board. 
 
As you know we have discussed these concerns over the Oast House and 
other developments.  It is important this does not happen again and for these 
reasons for this Council to have an Assets Programme Board to ensure that 
schemes are financially viable and value for money and also to provide 
scrutiny for our residents.  
 
In accordance with Standing Order 15.2, Councillor Nichols asked the 
following supplementary question: 
 
Firstly, I’d like to make it clear to the Leader, he says that the fees to-date for 
the project are at £822,000, not 1.2 million. However, if he were to add up all 
the items attributed to the Oast House on the Council’s website, he would 
come to more than 1.2 million, so that statement in his answer is incorrect. My 
question is: is he satisfied with the level of public consultation that has taken 
place over the Oast House? 
 
Response to supplementary question from Councillor J. Boughtflower: 
  
I am not happy with the amount of consultation that has taken place in relation 
to the Oast House. 

Page 31



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

26 
 

4. Question from Councillor Tom Fidler  
The timeline and public information on the Local Plan is not reflecting the 
current status. When can residents expect the website to provide an accurate 
timeline and updated account of the Local Plan process? 
 
Response from the Deputy Leader Councillor J. McIlroy: 
As an active member of the cross-party Local Plan Task Group (chaired by 
myself) you will be well aware, Cllr Fidler, of the very real challenges that we 
face of attempting to accommodate government housing requirements, whilst 
protecting our green belt. This has been severely hindered by central 
government changing the goalposts with our housing numbers, as recently as 
last December. 
 
I hope you would agree that we collectively have worked incredibly hard to try 
and find a way forward that works for our residents, but which also delivers 
the housing the Government expects. There is more work to be done by this 
Group. Once that has been completed a report will go to Cabinet setting out a 
proposed way forward, including a revised timeline. That report will be in the 
public domain and our website will be updated accordingly at that stage.    
 
In accordance with Standing Order 15.2, Councillor T. Fidler asked the 
following supplementary question: 
 
Whilst I respect that certain decisions and discussions need to be kept 
confidential, does Councillor McIlroy also agree with me that it is important for 
residents to come on the journey with us and that we should be releasing 
information and publicly available information should be clearly presented on 
our website in a timely fashion to make sure that residents feel happy and 
satisfied with the progress being made towards the local plan? 
 
Response to supplementary question from Councillor J. McIlroy   
 
I think my answer has been clearly set out to Councillor Fidler and I am quite 
happy to provide a written answer, but also to take it up with him at any time. 
Councillor Fidler knows exactly where we are with the local plan in what we’re 
trying to do.  
 
After the meeting, Councillor J. McIlroy provided the following written repose 
to supplement the answer provided at the meeting: “I would add I quite agree 
it is essential that we keep our residents informed when we have information 
we can share.  
 
The Strategic Planning and New Local Plan website is kept fully up to date 
and we frequently produce press releases to inform our community on the 
progress we are making and next steps on the Local Plan and the Staines 
Development Framework. As Cllr Fidler knows, we are at a crucial stage of 
our Plan preparation and it’s important that the information we release is not 
premature or misleading when the overall strategy is yet to finalised but as 
soon as we have details that are ready to be put into the public domain we will 

Page 32



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

27 
 

do so.”  
 
5. Question from Councillor Helen Harvey 
The Leader made the following statement in a press release 10th February 
2021: 
 
‘I specifically asked for a consultation exercise to be undertaken so that 
residents could give us their views on the future of Staines…’ 
 
I was surprised to learn that Cllr Boughtflower thinks that he was the one to 
have the bright idea to consult with the public over the emerging Staines 
Development Framework formally known as Staines Master Plan. This is not 
the case. 
 
As part of the preparation of a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) it is 
a standard formal requirement that public consultation exercises be carried 
out. Indeed, in June 2020 all Staines Councillors and other cross- party 
Councillors were sent a document entitled ‘Consultation Strategy’ where the 
proposals from our consultants for this consultation exercise were 
summarised.  Furthermore, I personally attended a meeting in June, which 
was minuted, where the methods and approaches for the consultations were 
discussed in detail and in particular with regard to COVID-19 restrictions. 
 
In view of this it is incumbent on Cllr Boughtflower to immediately issue a 
press release putting the record straight and apologising for misleading the 
public. 
 
A Spelthorne council press release on 17th June 2020 stated that despite 
COVID-19 restrictions the Staines Master Plan was expected to be ready 
‘early in 2021’ and other documents I have seen say by March 2021. Clearly 
according to the press release of 10th February 2021 this date has slipped by 
many months. Can the Leader inform Council and residents as to why this 
project; which is to provide an important support document for our emerging 
Local Plan, has been so delayed and can we be updated of the current Local 
Plan and Staines Development Framework timetable with key milestone 
dates? Our residents’ groups need to be kept informed so that they can plan 
and coordinate their responses should they wish to make formal 
representations to the Ministry. 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
For the Council, it is critical that the end result of the Staines Development 
Framework is the right one. Whilst there has been some slippage in moving 
forward on the Development Framework, I see no issue with this.  
 
Whilst all best endeavours have been made to meet specific deadlines 
expressed, nobody could foresee how this pandemic was to develop and the 
impact it would have on the work of the Council, as you be aware from the 
comprehensive regular Council COVID-19 Briefings for all members. 
 
Councillor McIlroy will  be providing an update on the timetable on these items 
at in due course to Cabinet.  

Page 33



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

28 
 

 
In accordance with Standing Order 15.2, Councillor H. Harvey asked the 

following supplementary question: 

Whilst I accept that during COVID some officers time has been diverted, the 
Staines Development Framework SPD document is being produced by 
external consultants, and as such I do not consider the explanation given is 
tenable. Can the Leader ensure that progress with the plans for Staines and 
the Local Plan are not delayed intentionally or any longer?  

Response to supplementary question from Councillor Boughtflower:  

Thank you for your question. Due to the availability of evening slots we have 
taken the decision to start switching meetings to daytime so that we can 
progress as quickly as possible. 

6. Question from Councillor Ian Harvey 

At the 21st January Extraordinary Council Meeting to discuss Spelthorne 
property projects Cllr Boughtflower you proposed SIX separate motions that 
would transfer responsibility to a “Project Board” that would be a 
subcommittee of a new Policy and Resources Committee that itself will not 
come into existence until after the transition to a Committee System in May 
2021.  
 
A separate report submitted that night stated that the interest cost alone of 
any delays is £9100 a week. Thus the minimum delay as a result of this is 19 
weeks, at a direct cost of £172,900.  
 
Having proposed motions to facilitate multi-million funding to these projects, 
you then proceeded on some of the motions to state that you had not yet 
made up your mind whether or not to support those motions that you yourself 
had just proposed. This does not suggest a very strong leadership or decision 
making ability, or indeed commercial acumen. Please can you justify your 
actions (or indeed inactions)? 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
I thank Councillor Harvey for his question. A decision was made by members 
at the ECM on the 21 January 2021 to direct the Capital Budgets for the 
Council’s Development Programme. At this ECM the proposed Assets 
Programme Board was introduced, as you well know. 
 
The Assets Programme Board has been set-up at Cabinet last night as a sub-
committee of Cabinet to take these matters forward and bridge the gap until 
May 2021.  
 
This Assets Programme Board will give residents and all members 
reassurance and transparency. 
 
As a leader I always listen to all and as a result may change my initial views, I 
see this is a positive and one of the skills of a leader. 
 

Page 34



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

29 
 

I lead by listening to what our residents and colleagues want and need and 
take steps to achieve that.  I see that as one of the skills of a leader. 
 
In accordance with Standing Order 15.2, Councillor I. Harvey asked the 
following supplementary question: 
 
Whilst I accept that a proposed assets programme board has been set up, the 
fact remains that at the commencement of the ECM on 25 of January 2021 
the situation at that point was that the programme board was going to be a 
sub-committee of the Policy and Resources Committee which itself was not 
going to come into play until at least after the Annual Council Meeting on 25  
May 2021. Therefore, at the beginning of that meeting, that board was going 
to be receiving referrals with a delay approaching 18 - 19 weeks. I therefore 
ask if the Leader would like to reconsider his answer, because I consider that 
his answer was based on what happened in hindsight not what was planned. 
 
Response to supplementary question from Councillor J. Boughtflower: 
 
Thank you Councillor I. Harvey. I think there is some hindsight here, but I 
really want to get things moving now, even as a template to move into the 
committee system. Delays cost as we all know. Waiting for the Committee 
system to be implemented in May is a long time as you’ve highlighted, so I 
want to progress as much as possible now to avoid further delays in people 
being given a place to live and to reduce costs. 
 
7. Question from Councillor Olivia Rybinski 
In October 2020 there was a very serious and unlawful leak of a very 
confidential document to journalists and this led to significant press interest. 
As Councillors we should abide by the Code of Conduct and not work to bring 
the Council into disrepute. This type of one-sided journalism causes residents 
to feel unsettled as they have not been given the full picture. 
 
Questions about this leak were asked in full council and we understand only 
four councillors (Cllr Boughtflower, Buttar, Mitchell and Nichols) had access to 
this document. At that time Cllr Boughtflower condemned the leak and 
assured Council members that this was indeed a serious matter and would be 
investigated, yet we are yet to be updated on the matter. 
Can you now provide councillors with an update as to the progress of that 
investigation?  
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
The administration takes a very dim view on the leaking of any confidential 
information. A preliminary Investigation was undertaken but the source of the 
leak of the information could not be established. Following this incident all 
councillors were reminded of their obligations with regards to confidential 
information.  
 
In accordance with Standing Order 15.2, Councillor O. Rybinski asked the 

following supplementary question: 

Page 35



 
Council, 25 February 2021 - continued 

 

30 
 

I am disappointed with this answer. Leaks to the press can be very damaging 
and I hope everyone takes this very seriously. Leaks have occurred several 
times in the past and reminding Councillors of their obligation does not seem 
to always work. Will the Leader please ensure that the leak is further 
investigated, and could he please update us with his findings?  

Response to supplementary question from Councillor J. Boughtflower:  

I will provide a written answer because I need to be in touch with the 
Monitoring Officer on this subject. 

After the meeting, Councillor J. Boughtflower provided the following written 
repose to supplement the answer provided at the meeting: “I completely agree 
that leaks to the press can be very damaging to the Council business and its 
reputation. I do take them very seriously. When the leak occurred in October, 
as I have previously answered, a preliminary investigation was undertaken but 
that preliminary investigation did not give any indication of the source of that 
leak. As there was no indication as to who had leaked the information no 
further action can be taken.”  

8. Question from Councillor Amar Brar 
Since the Leader is now supporting the Arora Hotel Complex development, 
can the Leader provide Council with an update as to any interactions, such as 
phone calls or meetings he has conducted or attended with Arora group 
during the past 6 months, and does he agree that we as a borough are indeed 
highly privileged that in such difficult economic times that Arora were still able 
to take a long term view and agreed to invest approximately £185m in our 
borough bringing a much needed boost to the planned regeneration of 
Staines, local jobs, an increase in visitors and to grow our economic 
prospects? 
 
Response from the Leader, Councillor J. Boughtflower 
I am surprised you are not aware of my view of the high rise developments as 
I have expressed repeatedly. 
 
I have received two telephone calls from Mr Arora suggesting a meeting. 
 
Therefore one virtual meeting with Mr Arora, Councillor McIlroy and the Chief 
Executive has taken place. 
 
All developments in the borough that meet the expectations of our residents 
are a privilege to have here, but others that do not are a different matter. 
 

Page 36



 
 

 
 

INUTES OF THE SPELTHORNE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the Council Meeting of Spelthorne Borough Council held in 
the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-

Thames on Thursday, 4 March 2021 at 6.00 pm 
 

Present: 
 
Councillors: 

M.M. Attewell 

C.L. Barratt 

R.O. Barratt 

C. Bateson 

J.R. Boughtflower 

A. Brar 

S. Buttar 

R. Chandler 

J.H.J. Doerfel 

J.T.F. Doran 

S.M. Doran 

R.D. Dunn 

 

S.A. Dunn 

T. Fidler 

N.J. Gething 

M. Gibson 

K.M. Grant 

A.C. Harman 

H. Harvey 

I.T.E. Harvey 

N. Islam 

T. Lagden 

V.J. Leighton 

M.J. Madams 

 

J. McIlroy 

A.J. Mitchell 

L. E. Nichols 

R.J. Noble 

O. Rybinski 

D. Saliagopoulos 

R.W. Sider BEM 

V. Siva 

B.B. Spoor 

J. Vinson 

 

Councillor C.F. Barnard, The Mayor, in the Chair 
 

Apologies: 
Apologies were received from Councillors I.J. Beardsmore, 
J.R. Sexton and R.A. Smith-Ainsley.  

 

65/21   Disclosures of Interest  
There were no disclosures of interest. 
 

66/21   Motions  
Pursuant to Standing Order 18.1, the Council received the following motion: 
 
“That this Council has no confidence in Councillor Boughtflower as Leader of 
Spelthorne Borough Council and that Councillor John Boughtflower be 
removed from the office of Leader forthwith.” 
 
The motion was moved by Councillor Jan Doerfel and seconded by Councillor 
Helen Harvey.  
  
A recorded vote was held at the request of Councillor A.C Mitchel and I.T.E 
Harvey. The motion FELL with the results as follows: 
 

Page 37



 
Council, 4 March 2021 - continued 

 

2 
 

FOR (8) 
Brar, Doerfel, Harvey H, Harvey I, Lagden, Rybinski, Saliagopoulos and Siva.  
 
AGAINST (17) 
Attewell, Barnard, Barratt C, Barratt R, Boughtflower, Buttar, Chandler, 
Gething, Gibson, Harman, Islam, Leighton, Madams, McIlroy, Mitchell, Noble 
and Sider.  
 
ABSTAIN (10) 
Bateson, Doran J, Doran S, Dunn R, Dunn S, Fidler, Grant, Nichols, Spoor 
and Vinson.  
 
Resolved that Councillor J.R. Boughtflower remain in position as Leader of 
Spelthorne Borough Council.  
 

67/21   Announcements from the Leader  
There were none.  
 

Page 38



 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE SPELTHORNE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the Extraordinary Council Meeting of Spelthorne Borough 
Council held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, 

Staines-upon-Thames on Thursday, 25 March 2021 at 6.00 pm 
 

Present: 
 
Councillors: 

M.M. Attewell 

C.L. Barratt 

R.O. Barratt 

C. Bateson 

I.J. Beardsmore 

J.R. Boughtflower (Leader) 

A. Brar 

S. Buttar 

R. Chandler 

J.H.J. Doerfel 

J.T.F. Doran 

S.M. Doran 

 

R.D. Dunn 

S.A. Dunn 

T. Fidler 

N.J. Gething 

M. Gibson 

K.M. Grant 

A.C. Harman (Deputy Mayor) 

H. Harvey 

I.T.E. Harvey 

N. Islam 

T. Lagden 

V.J. Leighton 

 

M.J. Madams 

A.J. Mitchell 

L. E. Nichols 

R.J. Noble 

O. Rybinski 

D. Saliagopoulos 

J.R. Sexton 

R.W. Sider BEM 

V. Siva 

R.A. Smith-Ainsley 

B.B. Spoor 

J. Vinson 

 

Councillor C.F. Barnard, The Mayor, in the Chair 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor J. McIlroy 

 
 

 

89/21   Disclosures of Interest  
There were no disclosures of interest. 
 

90/21   Change to a Committee System of Governance  
The Council considered a report from the Group Head of Corporate 
Governance on a change to a Committee System of Governance. She 
outlined the background to the change in governance arrangements, the 
proposed Committee structure, the role of the Leader and Deputy Leader and 
the transitional arrangements. 
 
It was moved by Councillor H. Harvey and seconded by Councillor O. 
Rybinski that the Council resolves to: 
 
1. cease operating the existing Leader and Cabinet form of governance and 

implement a Committee System model of governance to take effect from 
the Annual Council Meeting on the 27 May 2021; 

Page 39



 
Extraordinary Council, 25 March 2021 - continued 

 

2 
 

 
2. adopt the transitional arrangements as set out in this report; and 

 
3. authorise the Group Head of Corporate Governance to make the 

necessary changes to those parts of the Constitution not presented in the 
recommendations from the Member’s Code of Conduct Committee, in 
respect of references to the Cabinet to the relevant Committee and from 
the Leader and Deputy to the Committee Chair and Vice-Chair as 
appropriate. 

 
Councillor I.T.E. Harvey called for a recorded vote on the motion. 
 
The voting was as follows: 
 
FOR (34) 
J.R. Boughtflower, M.M. Attewell, C. Barnard, C. Barratt, R.O. Barratt, C. 
Bateson, I.J. Beardsmore, S. Buttar, R. Chandler, J.H. Doerfel, J.T. Doran, 
S.M. Doran, R.D. Dunn, S.A. Dunn, T. Fidler, M. Gibson, K. Grant, A.C. 
Harman, H. Harvey, N. Islam, T. Lagden, V.J. Leighton, M.J. Madams, A.J. 
Mitchell, L.E. Nichols, R. Noble, O. Rybinski, D. Saliagopoulos, J.R. Sexton, 
R.W. Sider, V. Siva, R.A. Smith-Ainsley, B.B. Spoor, J. Vinson. 
 
ABSTAIN (2) 
A. Brar, I.T.E. Harvey 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Resolved to: 
 
1. cease operating the existing Leader and Cabinet form of governance and 

implement a Committee System model of governance to take effect from 
the Annual Council Meeting on the 27 May 2021; 
 

2. adopt the transitional arrangements as set out in this report; and 
 

3. authorise the Group Head of Corporate Governance to make the 
necessary changes to those parts of the Constitution not presented in the 
recommendations from the Member’s Code of Conduct Committee, in 
respect of references to the Cabinet to the relevant Committee and from 
the Leader and Deputy to the Committee Chair and Vice-Chair as 
appropriate. 

 

91/21   Recommendation from the Members Code of Conduct 
Committee  

The Council considered a recommendation from the Members’ Code of 
Conduct Committee on changes to the Constitution required to operate a 
Committee System of governance. 
 
It was moved by Councillor J.R. Boughtflower and seconded by Councillor 
M.M. Attewell that the Council: 

Page 40



 
Extraordinary Council, 25 March 2021 - continued 

 

3 
 

 
1. agrees the proposed amendments to the Constitution (as appended to 

the report dated 17 March 2021) for adoption with a move to a 
Committee system of governance; and 

 
2. agrees to amend Sections 13.4 and 14.2 of Part 4a Council Standing 

Orders from a limit of one question to two questions. 
 
An amendment was moved by Councillor J.H. Doerfel and seconded by 
Councillor I.J. Beardsmore to add the following words (shown by italics) to 
part 1. of the Motion and to delete Part 2. 
 
“That the Council agrees the proposed amendments to the Constitution (as 
appended to the report dated 17 March 2021) for adoption with a move to a 
Committee system of governance, with the exception of any proposed 
changes to the current Sections 14 and 15 of Council Standing Orders 
relating to public and councillor questions.” 
 
The amendment was voted upon and carried. 
 
Councillor N.J Gething joined the meeting. 
 
An amendment was moved by Councillor A.J Mitchell and seconded by 
Councillor J.R. Boughtflower: 
 
“That each Committee be limited in authority to grant expenditure to £1 million 
for any particular project without seeking approval from full Council. Any 
project must be taken as a whole and the project cannot be sub-divided into 
its constituent parts with each being authorised separately to avoid this limit 
set by this rule.” 
 
The Monitoring Officer sought clarification on the wording of the amendment 
and advised that the appropriate place for such a rule to be included in the 
Constitution would be in Financial Regulations, which was not before the 
Council at this meeting. 
 
Councillor Mitchell clarified that the expenditure referred to either capital or 
revenue. He requested that the amendment be voted upon and included in an 
appropriate place within the Constitution. 
 
The amendment was voted upon and carried. The substantive motion was put 
to the vote. 
 
 
Resolved to agree: 
 
1.  the proposed amendments to the Constitution (as appended to the 

report dated 17 March 2021) for adoption with a move to a Committee 
system of governance, with the exception of any proposed changes to 

Page 41



 
Extraordinary Council, 25 March 2021 - continued 

 

4 
 

the current Sections 14 and 15 of Council Standing Orders relating to 
public and councillor questions; and 

 
2. that the following rule for the 5 Service Committees be included in an 

appropriate place within the Constitution: 
  

Each Committee be limited in authority to grant expenditure to £1 
million for any particular project without seeking approval from full 
Council. Any project must be taken as a whole and the project cannot 
be sub-divided into its constituent parts with each being authorised 
separately to avoid this limit set by this rule. 

 

92/21   Asset Programme Board/ Development Sub-Committee  
The Council considered the report of the Group Head of Corporate 
Governance on the membership of the Programme Board and terms of 
reference of the Development sub-Committee. 
 
It was moved by Councillor J.R. Boughtflower and seconded by Councillor 
M.M Attewell that Council agrees: 
 

1. to extend the membership of the current Programme Board Cabinet Sub-
Committee to include additional Councillors. 
  

2. to adopt the terms of reference for a Development Sub-Committee from the 
Annual Council Meeting as set out in the report. 

 
Councillor I.J. Beardsmore announced that he would be withdrawing from 
membership of the Programme Board and proposed the following amendment 
to the terms of reference of the Development Sub-Committee, which was 
seconded by Councillor R.A. Smith-Ainsley: 
 
“That the membership of the Development Sub-Committee comprise 5 
members appointed by the Policy and Resources Committee and 2 members 
appointed by the Environment and Sustainability Committee.” 
 
The amendment was voted upon and carried. The substantive motion was put 
to the vote. 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. to extend the membership of the current Programme Board Cabinet Sub-

Committee to include additional Councillors; being Councillor L.E. Nichols 
and Councillor R.A. Smith-Ainsley.  
 

2. to adopt the terms of reference for a Development Sub-Committee from 
the Annual Council Meeting as set out in this report. subject to the 
membership comprising 5 members appointed by the Policy and 
Resources Committee and 2 members appointed by the Environment and 
Sustainability Committee. 

 

Page 42



 

 
Version: 1, Last saved: 13/04/21 14:22 

Council  

 

22 April 2021 

 

1. Key issues 

1.1 The proposed Calendar of meetings for 2021-2022 (Appendix 1a) has been 
compiled to enable the consideration of Council business and covers the 
period from May 2021 to May 2022. 

1.2 The Council agreed at its extraordinary meeting on 25 March 2021 to adopt a 
Committee system model of governance with effect from the Annual Council 
meeting on 27 May 2021. The calendar has therefore been prepared for the 
first time on the basis of the new Committee system structure. 

1.3 Meetings of the Council have been scheduled with the following general 
principles in mind, to enable effective decision-making whilst making the best 
use of resources available: 

 
i) Avoidance of Surrey school holidays wherever possible. It is not possible 

to additionally accommodate the differing holiday periods of private 
schools.  
 

ii) Maintaining the current scheduling of full Council meetings i.e. meetings in 
July, October, December, February and April and the Annual (Mayor 
making) meeting in May. 
 

iii) The Committee meetings have been programmed to ensure that matters 
which need to be referred on to the Policy and Resources Committee 
and/or Council can proceed in a timely way, thereby enabling the Council 

 Calendar of Meetings 2021-2022 

Purpose of the report To make a decision 

Report Author Gillian Scott, Committee Services Support Officer 

Cabinet Member Councillor John Boughtflower 

Confidential No 

Corporate Priority Relevant to all priorities 

Recommendations 

 

Council is asked to approve the Calendar of Meetings for 
2021-2022 as set out in Appendix 1a. 

 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

The Calendar of Meetings provides a framework for the 
democratic and decision-making procedures that will 
underpin the delivery of the Council’s key priorities. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 10



 
 

to implement its priorities and strategies, as well as fulfil its constitutional 
and legal obligations.  

 
iv) The Regulatory and Administrative Committees feed directly into Council 

(i.e. Planning, Licensing, Audit, Standards and Administrative ) 
 

v) Each Committee meets wherever possible on the same day of the week. 
 

vi) Licensing Committee primarily meets as a daytime Sub-Committee and 
those meetings are arranged as and when required. Rather than schedule 
a monthly Licensing Committee which is likely to be cancelled, this 
Committee can be scheduled as and when we are notified of business. (It 
met twice in 2018 and 2019 and once in 2020) 

 

1.4 The Committee Chairs have the power to call additional or extraordinary 
meetings, when required, to accommodate urgent or unscheduled matters of 
business. 

1.5 The Committee System Working Group (consisting of all the Group Leaders) 
was consulted on the draft calendar and agreed it as a good starting 
framework. The Working Group has agreed to keep a watching brief on the 
new operational arrangements of the Committee system which will include the 
frequency of meetings, at 3- and 6-month intervals with a formal review taking 
place after 12 months.  

1.6 The Chief Finance Officer has been consulted on the suitability of dates to 
enable financial reports to be ready for consideration at the relevant service 
committees on a timely basis. 

2. Options analysis and proposal 

2.1 The calendar of meetings provides a framework for the democratic and 
decision-making processes that will underpin the delivery of the Council’s key 
priorities. It is proposed to agree the dates as set out in Appendix 1a. 

3. Financial implications 

4. The cost of administering the proposed meetings will be met from within 
existing budgets.  

5. Other considerations 

5.1 There are none. 

6. Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

6.1 There are no implications. 

7. Timetable for implementation 

7.1 Once agreed by Council, the Calendar of Meetings will be published on the 
Council’s website and implemented from May 2021. 

 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1a – proposed Calendar of Meetings schedule (A4) 
Appendix 1 & 2 – proposed Calendar of meetings year planners in colour (A3 x 
2) 

Page 44



 
 

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Calendar of Meetings May 2021 to May 2022         
 

24 February 2021 v3 
 

Meeting June 

2021 

July 

2021  

Aug 

2021 

Sept  

2021 

Oct 

2021 

Nov 

2021  

Dec 

2021  

Jan  

2022 

Feb  

2022 

Mar  

2022 

Apr  

2022 

May 

2022  

Council 
Thursday  15   14  9  24  28 ACM 26 

Policy & Resources 
Committee 
Monday/ *Tuesday 

 5   4 15, 
29 

  7 14 19*  

Environment and 
Sustainability Committee 
Tuesday 

15   14  9  18  8   

Economic Development 
Committee 
Tuesday 

22   21  16  25  22   

Community Wellbeing 
Committee 
Tuesday 

29   28  23   1 29   

Planning Committee 
Wednesday 23 21 18 15 13 10 8 5 2 2, 30 27 - 

Neighbourhood Services 
Committee 
Thursday 

9   9 
C&D* 

 4  13  3   

Audit Committee 
Thursday  29    25    24   

Standards Committee 
Wednesday 8    20     16   

Administrative Committee 
Thursday  1   7    10  21  

Bank Holidays 
Council Offices closed 

  30    27,28 3   15,18 2 

*C&D = Crime and Disorder. The Council has a statutory duty to review crime and disorder matters once a year. 
 
Notes 

1. Licensing Committees and Sub-Committees will be scheduled as and when required 
 

2. There are currently no elections scheduled for May 2022 

P
age 47



 

3. There are no Planning committees planned for May 2022 as based on a 4-weekly cycle the meeting would fall on the day before Annual Council. 
The Planning Development Manager has confirmed it is acceptable to restart on 1 June 2022. A special meeting can be called if there is urgent 
business. 

P
age 48



 

2021 Year Planner 

2021 M T W T F SS M T W T F SS M T W T F SS M T W T F SS M T W T F SS M T 

January 

    1 
Bank 

Holiday 

2 
3 

4 5 6 
Planning 

7 8 9 
10 

11 
Cabinet 

Briefing 

 
 

12 13 
Licensing 

14 15 16 
17 

18 
Cons. 

Group 

19 
O&S 

20 21 
Cabinet 

Budget 

Briefing 

22 23 
24 

25 26 27 
Cabinet 

28 29 30 
31 

  

February 

1 
 

2 3 
Planning 

4 
MCCC 

5 6 
7 

8 
Cabinet 

Briefing 

9 10 
Licensing 

11 
 

12 13 
14 

15 
Cons. 

Group 

16 17 
 

18 19 20 
21 

22 23 24 
Cabinet 

25 
Council 

26 27 
28 

        

March 

1 2 3 

Planning 

4 5 6 

7 

8 

Cabinet 

Briefing 

9 10 

Licensing 

11 12 13 

14 

15 

Cons. 

Group 

16 17 

MCCC 

18 

Audit 

 

19 20 

21 

22 23 

O&S 

24 

Cabinet 

25 26 27 

28 

29 30 31 

Planning 

     

April 

   1 2 

Bank 

Holiday 

3 

4 

5 

Bank 

Holiday 

6 7 8 9 10 

11 

12 13 14 

MCCC 

15 16 17 

18 

19 

 

20 21 

Licensing 

22 

 

23 24 

25 

26 27 28 

Planning 

29 

Council 

 

30    

May 

     1 

2 

3 

Bank 
Holiday 

4 

Cabinet 
Briefing 

 

 

5 6 

PCC and  
SCC 

Election 

7 8 

9 

10 

Cons. 
Group 

11 12 

Licensing 

13 14 15 

16 

17 18 19 

Cabinet 

20 21 22 

23 

24 25 26 

Planning 

27 

Annual 
Council 

28 29 

30 

31 

Bank 
Holiday 

 

June 

 1 2 3 4 5 

6 

7 

 

8 

Standards 
 

 

 

9 

Neighb’d 
Services 

10 11 12 

13 

14 15 

Env & 
Sust 

 

 

16 

 

17 18 19 

20 

21 

 

22 

Economic 
Dev. 

 

 

23 

Planning 

24 25 26 

27 

28 

 

29 

Community 
Wellbeing 

30 

 

     

July 

   1 
Admin 

 

2 3 
4 

5 
Policy and 

Resources 

 

6 
LGA 

Conference 

7 
LGA 

Conference 

  

8 
LGA 

Conference 

9 10 
11 

12 13 14 
 

15 
Council 

 

 

16 17 
18 

19 20 21 
Planning 

22 23 24 
25 

26 27 28 29 
Audit  

 

 

30 31   

August 

     1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 
15 

16 17 18 
Planning 

19 20 21 
22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 
29 

30 
Bank 

Holiday 

31 

September 

  1 2 

 

 

3 4 

5 

6 7 8 

 

9  

Neighb’d 

Services 
 

10 11 

12 

13 14 

Env & 

Sust 

15 

Planning 

16 17 18 

19 

20 21 

Economic 

Dev. 

22 23 24 25 

26 

27 

 

 
 

Lib Dem 

PC 

28 

Community 

Wellbeing 
 

Lib Dem 

PC 

29 30 

 

    

October 

    1 2 

3 

4 

Policy and 

Resources 
 

Conservative 

PC 

5 

 

 
 

Conservative 

PC 

6 

 

 
 

Conservative 

PC 

7 

Admin 

 

8 9 

10 

11 12 13 

Planning 

14 

Council 

15 16 

17 

18 19 20 

Standards 

21 22 23 

24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 

31 

  

November 

1 2 3 4 

Neighb’d 
Services 

 

5 6 

7 

8 9 

Env & Sust. 

10 

Planning 

11 12 13 

14 

15 

Policy 
and 

Resources 

16 

Economic 
Dev 

17 18 19 20 

21 

22 23 

Community 
Wellbeing 

 

 

24 25 

Audit & 
Standards 

 

26 27 

28 

29 

Policy 
and 

Resources 

30       

December 

  1 2 

 

3 4 

5 

6 7 8 

Planning 

9 

Council 

10 11 

12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 

27 

Bank 
Holiday 

28 

Bank 
Holiday 

29 30 31    

 

 

 
 

 

 

P
age 49



 

Council   

Policy and Resources   

Planning Committee   

Environment and Sustainability  

Community Wellbeing  

Economic Development  

Neighbourhood Services  

Audit    

Standards  

Administration  

Surrey Schools’ Holidays   

P
age 50



2022 Year Planner 

2022 M T W T F SS M T W T F SS M T W T F SS M T W T F SS M T W T F SS M T 

January 

     1 

2 

3 

Bank 

Holiday 

4 5 

Planning 

Committee 

6 7 8 

9 

10 11 12 13 

Neigh’d 

Services 

14 15 

16 

17 18  

Env & Sust 

19 20 21 22 

23 

24 25  

 

Economic 
Development 

26 

 

27 

 

28 29 

30 

31  

February 

 1 

Community 

Wellbeing 

2 

Planning 

Committee 

3 4 5 

6 

7  

Policy 

and 
Resources 

8 

 

9 10 

Admin 

Committee 

11 12 

13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 

21 

 

 
 

22 23 24 

Council 

25 26 

27 

28        

March 

 1 2 

Planning 

Committee 

3 

Neighb’d 

Services 

4 5 

6 

7 8  

Env & 

Sust 

9 10 

 

 
 

11 12 

13 

14 

Policy 

and 
Resources 

15  

 

 

16 

Standards 

17 

 

18 19 

20 

21 22 

Economic 

Development 

23 24  

Audit  

25 26 

27 

28 29 

Community 

Wellbeing 

30 

Planning 

Committee 

31 

 

    

April 

    1 2 

3 

4 5 

 

6 7 8 9 

10 

11 12 13 14 15 

Bank 

Holiday 

16 

17 

18 

Bank 

Holiday 

19 

Policy and 

Resources 

20 21 

Admin 

Committee 

22 23 

24 

25 26 27 

Planning 

Committee 

28 

Council 

29 30   

May 

     1 2 

Bank 

Holiday 

3 4 5 

 

6 7 

8 

9 10 11 12 

 

13 14 

15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 

23 24 25 26 

Annual 

Council 

27 28 

29 

30 31 

June 

  1 

Planning 

Committee 
*5 

2 

Bank 

Hol 

3 

Bank 

Hol 

4 

5 

6 7 8 9 

 

10 11 

12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 

27 28 29 30     

July 

    1 2 

3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 

31 

  

August 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 

29 

Bank 

Holiday 

30 31      

September 

   1 2 3 

4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 

26 27 28 29 30    

October 

     1 

2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 

31  

November 

 1 2 3 4 5 

6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 

 

21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 

28 29 30      

December 

   1 2 3 

4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 

26 27 28 29 30 31   

 

 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Report from the Leader of the Council on the work of the Cabinet 
 
This is my report as the Leader of the Council on the work of the Cabinet. It is an overview 
of the business considered by the Cabinet at its meeting held on 24 March 2021 and its 
extraordinary meeting on 29 March 2021.  
 
24 March 2021  
1. Recommendation of the Audit Committee on Corporate Risk Management 
 
1.1 Cabinet considered the recommendations of the Audit Committee and approved the 

Corporate Risk Register which sets out the controls that have been put in place and 
identifies any further action which might be necessary to mitigate risks.  
 

2. Public Space Protection Orders - Unauthorised Mooring UPDATE 
 

2.1 We received an update on a potential Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) for 
unauthorised moorings and noted that there were currently insufficient grounds to 
satisfy the conditions for a PSPO to be issued.  
 

3. Update on proposed injunction for unauthorised encampments 
 

3.1 Cabinet received an update on a proposed injunction for unauthorised encampments 
and noted that the matter could not be considered further until the Court of Appeal 
had passed judgement on the injunctions granted to other District and Borough 
Councils.  
 

4. Exempt report - Transfer of properties from Spelthorne Borough Council to 
Knowle Green Estates Ltd. 
 

4.1 We considered and agreed the recommendations contained in an exempt report on 
the transfer of properties from Spelthorne Borough Council to Knowle Green Estates 
Ltd. 

 
5. Exempt report - Re-opening of Spelthorne Leisure Centres – request for funding 

 
5.1 We considered and agreed the recommendations contained in an exempt report on a 

request for funding to enable the re-opening of Spelthorne Leisure Centres. 
 
29 March 2021 
 
1. Staines Development Framework Issues and Options Consultation 
1.1 Cabinet considered a report on the Staines Development Framework Issues and 

Options consultation and resolved to agree the Appendices to commence a 
consultation on the Staines Development Framework Issues and Options on 13 April 
2021 to last for six weeks. 

 
Councillor John Boughtflower 
Leader of the Council       22 April 2021 

Page 53

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Chairman on the work of the Audit Committee 

This report gives an overview of the main issues considered at the meeting of the Audit 
Committee on 18 March 2021.  

 

1. External Auditors (BDO) update 

1.1 The Committee received a verbal update from the external Auditors BDO on progress 
made on the 2018/19 accounts and arrangements for work on the 2019/20 accounts. 

1.2 The Committee expressed their frustration at the ongoing delay in the finalisation of 
audit matters with KPMG. 

1.3 The Committee noted that BDO had finalised a resourcing plan and specialist staff 
were ready to start the Housing Benefit Review in early April. 

 

2. Report on the effectiveness of the system of internal audit 

2.1 The Internal Audit Manager outlined the findings of the annual review into the 
effectiveness of internal audit and confirmed that the overall conclusion from the self-
assessment undertaken in February 2021 was that Spelthorne’s internal audit function 
largely conforms with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  

2.2 The Committee expressed concern at the timeliness of management responses and 
agreed that they would like to receive an update on the timeliness of management 
responses at the next meeting 

2.3 The Committee noted the report. 

 

3. Annual Audit plan report 2021/22 
3.1 The Committee considered a report outlining the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 

which demonstrated how the authority would fulfil its statutory and professional 
requirements to maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its 
accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with proper 
internal audit practices.  

3.2 The Committee agreed that suitable members should be involved in setting the terms 
of reference of wider audits, where appropriate, without compromising the work, 
independence, or objectivity of internal audit.  

3.3 The Committee approved the annual internal audit plan for 2021/22 and noted the 
update summary on the 2020/21 audit workplan.  

 

4. MHCLG Pilot Survey on Capital Data 
4.1 The Committee received an update from the Deputy Chief Executive on the Ministry 

for Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) pilot survey on Capital 
Data.  

4.2 The Committee noted that it had been a very useful process for Spelthorne and other 
councils to engage in the pilot and as a result, the survey had been modified by the 
MHCLG and made more comprehensive and meaningful.  

Page 55

Agenda Item 12



  

 

 

4.3 The Committee agreed that the final return for Spelthorne on the revised survey would 
be circulated to the Committee. 

 

5. COVID-19 Risk Considerations update 
5.1 The Committee considered a report setting out the most significant risks and 

opportunities to the Council in relation to the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic. The 
Committee considered the assessment to be a comprehensive assessment of the 
risks faced and mitigation measures.   

5.2 The Committee requested that once the Economic Development team had 
undertaken the on the impact of COVID-19 on major businesses they would like to 
review the results.   

5.3 The Committee agreed to note the updated COVID-19 Risk Management report and 
appendices.  

 

6. Corporate Risk Management  

6.1 The Committee received a report on Corporate Risk Management and noted that a 
significant amount of work had been undertaken to make the Corporate Risk Register 
more user friendly and thanked officers for their work.  

6.2 The Committee agreed to note the report and recommend the Corporate Risk 
Register to Cabinet for approval. 

 

7. Committee Work Programme 

7.1 The Committee considered and agreed its Work Programme for the coming Municipal 
year 

 

 

 

 

Councillor Lawrence Nichols    22 April 2021 

Chairman of the Audit Committee   

Page 56



 

Report of the Chairman on the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

This report gives an overview of the main issues considered at the meeting held on 
23 March 2021 and the Extraordinary meeting held on 7 April 2021.  

 

23 March 2021 

1. Revenue Monitoring Q3 (Oct - Dec) 

1.1 The Committee considered the Revenue Monitoring report for Q3 (Oct - Dec).  

1.2 The Committee raised a number of queries on specific items which officers 
responded to at the meeting or agreed to look into and provide a written answer. 

1.3 Members asked if it would be possible for Cabinet to consider using the outstanding 
unallocated balance of the Project Delivery Fund as an allowance, or bidding scheme, 
for Councillors and community groups to bid for to support green initiatives in the 
borough and were pleased that the Finance Portfolio Holder, Councillor Buttar, was 
present and confirmed that he had noted the suggestion and would consider it. 

1.4 The Committee agreed to note the forecast outturn for 2020/21 as at 31 December 
2020. 

 

2. Capital Monitoring Q3 (Oct-Dec) 

2.1 The Committee considered the Capital Monitoring report for Q3 (Oct-Dec).  

2.2 The Committee raised a number of queries on specific items which officers 
responded to at the meeting or agreed to look into and provide a written answer. 

2.3 The Committee agreed to note the report.   

 

3. River Thames Task Group update 

3.1 The Committee considered a report on the work and achievements of the task group 
to date noting that the Council had completed several projects including providing a 
jetty for boat trips to support Staines’ economy and upgraded lifesaving stations along 
the river. A variety of projects were ongoing with external assistance from the Thames 
Landscape Strategy.  

3.2 The Committee noted that the manager of the Lammas café had done a lot of work in 
preparation for providing electric boats for residents and visitors to enjoy and was 
considering bringing back the crazy golf. 

3.3 The Committee acknowledged that residents had also contributed to improving the 
riverscape, with one resident pulling trolleys from the river for the Council to collect, 
and that Councillor Gibson was in the process of arranging a joint river and land clean 
up and would share the details with the Committee in due course.   

 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 13



  

 

 

4. Task Groups – update and closure  

4.1 The Committee noted that Councillor Noble was unable to attend the meeting and 
requested that a written update be provided on the work of the Climate Change task 
group and End of Life Celebration Centre task group should there be anything to 
report.  

4.2 The Committee acknowledged that the Clean Streets task group had agreed to close 
as the Spelthorne Litter Pickers were doing a fantastic job and there was no need for 
duplication. The Committee expressed their thanks and gratitude to the Spelthorne 
Litter Pickers.  

4.3 The Committee noted that if the Committee system was adopted by Council at its 
extraordinary meeting on 25 March 2021 any future work of the Task Groups would 
be subsumed into the relevant Committee, which would decide whether there is a 
need to set up a sub-committee or Task Group to look at a particular matter. The 
Chairman thanked members and officers for all their work and for providing the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee with regular updates. 

 

5. Work Programme 

5.1 The Committee noted that as there were no further ordinary meetings scheduled there 
was no further work to be considered.  

 

Extraordinary Meeting, 7 April 2021 

1. Call in of Cabinet Decision - Exempt report - Transfer of properties from 
Spelthorne Borough Council to Knowle Green Estates Ltd. 

1.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the Cabinet Decision taken at its 
meeting on 24 March 2021.  

1.2 Members asked several detailed questions and received responses from officers.  

1.3 The Committee agreed that it was supportive of the Cabinet’s decision, but 
recommended that the appropriate documentation must be in place going forward.  

1.4 Members of the Committee concluded that it was important that the Cabinet take 
decisions that have been clearly defined and with the right policies in place. Cabinet 
and Committee papers need to be clear and concise and contain all relevant 
information, so members are able to look back and see that all the relevant facts had 
been considered. 

1.5 The Committee resolved to recommend to Cabinet the following three 
recommendations: 

Recommendation 1: 

That Cabinet instructs officers to draw up the following documents: 

1. A Term Sheet to set out the basis of developments and supporting policy. A Term 
sheet should be required for each Spelthorne Borough Council residential 
development and will be created prior to planning application submission and 
monitored and adjusted as required thereafter. 

Page 58



  

 

 

2. A policy for valuation and transfers of developments. 

3. An interest rate policy. 

4. Documentation of Knowle Green Estates (KGE) depreciation policy. 

 

Recommendation 2: 

A Term sheet template and draft policy documents are to be presented for approval by the 
Policy and Resources Committee and KGE Board as soon as possible and no later than the 
end of July 2021. 

 

Recommendation 3: 

That Cabinet confirms that no housing units will be sold unless a policy to do so is formally 
approved by the Council. 

 

 

 

 

Councillor Vivienne Leighton 

Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee  22 April 2021 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Chairman on the Work of the Planning Committee 
 
The Planning Committee has met on two occasions since the previous report 
to Council. This report gives an overview of the key items considered by the 
Committee at its meetings on 03 March and 31 March 2021.  
 
1. Planning Committee meeting – 03 March 2021 
 
1.1 The Committee considered two applications. 
 
1.2 Application No. 20/00736/FUL – This was for the erection of a            

two-storey detached building comprising 2 x 1 bedroom flats. The 
application was refused. 

 
1.3  Application No. 20/01544/FUL – This application was for the erection of 

a dwelling house (use class C3) with associated car parking and 
landscaping following removal of existing ‘summer accommodation’. 
The application was refused. 

 
2.      Planning Committee meeting – 31 March 2021 
 
2.1 The Committee considered one application 
 
2.2   Application No. 20/01573/FUL – This was for the erection of a second 

floor extension to create an additional flat and alterations to an existing 
approved 1 bed flat together with external alterations and provisions of 
cycle parking and refuse storage. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Tom Lagden     22 April 2021 
Chairman of Planning Committee 
 
 
 

Page 61

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank



Motion to Support the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill 
 
Preamble 
 
Humans have already caused irreversible climate change, the impacts of which are being 
felt in the UK and around the world. Global temperatures have increased by 1 degree 
Celsius from pre-industrial levels. Atmospheric CO2 levels are above 400 parts per million 
(ppm) and continue to rise. This far exceeds the 350 ppm deemed to be a safe level for 
humanity. 
 
Without more significant and sustained action, the world is set to exceed the Paris 
Agreement’s 1.5°C limit between 2030 and 2040. Therefore the current UK target of net zero 
by 2050 is not satisfactory. It is too little too late. 
 
The increase in harm caused by a rise of 2°C rather than 1.5°C is significant. This is 
described by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change’s Special Report on Global 
Warming of 1.5°C published in October 2018.  
 
According to the IPCC, limiting heating to 1.5°C may still be possible with ambitious action 
from national and sub-national authorities, civil society, the private sector and local 
communities. The costs of failing to address this crisis will far outstrip the investments 
required to prevent it. Investing now will bring many benefits in the form of good sustainable 
jobs, breathable cities and thriving communities. 
 
Council notes that  
 
(i) Spelthorne Borough Council has declared a Climate Emergency and that many local 
authorities are playing an important role in the UK taking action to achieve net zero  
 
(ii) There is a Bill before Parliament—the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill 
(published as the “Climate and Ecology Bill”)—according to which the Government must 
develop an emergency strategy that: 
(a) requires that the UK plays its fair and proper role in reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions consistent with limiting global temperature increase  to 1.5 degrees C above pre-
industrial temperatures; 
(b) ensures that all the UK’s consumption emissions are accounted for; 
(c) includes emissions from aviation and shipping; 
(d) protects and restores biodiverse habitats along overseas supply chains; 
(e) restores and regenerates the UK’s depleted soils, wildlife habitats and species 
populations to healthy and robust states, maximising their capacity to absorb CO2 and their 
resistance to climate heating; 
(f) sets up an independent Citizens’ Assembly, representative of the UK’s population, to 
engage with Parliament and Government and help develop the emergency strategy. 
 
Council therefore resolves to: 
 
(i) Support the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill 
(ii) Inform the local media of this decision; 
(iii) Write to Mr Kwasi Kwarteng asking him to support the CEE Bill; and 
(iv) Write to the CEE Bill Alliance, the organisers of the campaign for the Bill, expressing 
its support (campaign@ceebill.uk). 
 
Proposer: Jan Doerfel 
Seconder: Tom Lagden 
 

Page 63

Agenda Item 15

mailto:campaign@ceebill.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes , 04/03/2021 Council
	Minutes , 25/03/2021 Council

	10 Calendar of Meetings 2021-2022
	App 1a A4 Calendar of meetings 2021-22
	App 1 2021 A3 colour Planner
	App 2 2022 A3 colour Planner

	11 Report from the Leader of the Council
	12 Report from the Chairman of the Audit Committee
	13 Report from the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	14 Report from the Chairman of the Planning Committee
	15 Motions

